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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

At Peerless, we believe that any long-term corporate strategy
should revolve around an integrated purpose to build:
* a strong and enduring business that generates solid returns to
our shareholders,
*» high value products and services to our customers, and
* opportunity and challenge for our emplovees.

We are pleased to report that that our focus on and commitment
to this strategy is working and delivering enhanced value to you,
our shareholders. In short, we had a great year! We delivered:
* revenue growth in excess of 18%,
* a consolidated gross profit margin increase of 4.2% to 31.7%,
* diluted earnings per share, adjusted to exclude an exceptional
item, of $0.56, compared to $0.07,
¢ and a backlog of approximately $97.0 million compared to
$40.0 million ar June 30, 2006.

FISCAL YEAR 2007 RESULTS

Revenues for fiscal year 2007 were $75.1 million, an increase of
$11.7 million, or 18.5%, compared to revenues of $63.4 million
for fiscal year 2006. Net earnings for fiscal year 2007 were $5.9
million, or $0.92 per diluted share, an increase of $3.5 million, or
$0.85 per diluted share, compared to net earnings of $0.4 million,
or $0.07 per diluted share, for fiscal year 2006,

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company sold its former
headquarters $3.5 million pre-
tax gain. The gain on the sale increased fiscal year 2007
net earnings by $2.3 million, or $0.36 per diluted share.
Net earnings for fiscal year 2007, excluding the gain on
the sale, were $3.6 million, or $0.56 per diluted share, compared
to net earnings of $0.4 million, or $0.07 per diluted share, for fiscal
year 2006.

facility and recorded a

Separation/Filtration Systems segment revenues for fiscal year
2007 were $47.2 million, an increase of $3.6 million, or 8.3%,
compared to revenues of $43.6 million for fiscal year 2006.
Separation/Filtration Systems segment operating income for fiscal
year 2007 was $6.6 million, an increase of $1.4 million, compared
to an operating income of $3.3 million for fiscal year 2006. The
primary driver for this favorable performance is the continued
expansion of natural gas pipeline infrastructure required to meet
the increasing demand for energy worldwide.

Environmental Systems segment revenues for fiscal year 2007 were
$27.9 million, an increase of $8.1 million, or 41.1%, compared
to revenues of $19.8 million for fiscal year 2006. Environmental

Systems segment operating income for fiscai year 2007 was $5.0
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million, an increase of $L2.9 millidén, ‘compared t5'an operating
income of $2.1 million for fiscal year 2006. The increase in
fiscal 2007 was primarily due to increased demand for power
and expanded refining capacity, resulting in the construction
of power generation plants and refinery equipment thar require
environmental control systems.

We ended fiscal vear 2007 with a strong balance sheet, as
demonstrated by the $17.0 million of cash and investments and
no debt, total assets of $368.7 millien, working capital of $30.6
million and a current ratio of 1.91 to 1.0.

Perhaps the most important development in fiscal 2007 was the

growth in our backlog, which at the end of the fiscal year stood at
$97.0 million compared to $40.0 million at June 30, 2006.

These results were instrumental in driving our stock price higher
during fiscal year 2007, and are reflective of the recognition by the
stock market that Peerless is an attractive investment.

PEERLESS BUSINESS UNITS

By business unit, we were firing on all cylinders in fiscal year
2007, giving us solid momentum as we enter the new fiscal year.
Across our organization, we reemphasized the need to listen to
our customers, understand their needs, and apply our technology,
engineering experttise, and manufacturing skills to deliver cost-
effective solutions.

SEPARATION AND FILTRATION

Strong global energy demand is creating opportunities for our
separation and filtration products. New and expanding pipelines,
gas processing facilities, chemical and petrochemical processing
plants, nuclear power plants, and liquefied natural gas plants
and terminals are positively impacting the market for separation
preducts. We believe the domestic and international markets for
our separation products will continue to remain strong as new
pipelines and gas processing facilities are developed. Projected new
and planned pipeline construction is expected to be in excess of
98,000 miles worldwide and some 40,000 miles in the U.S. alone.
There were many examples of this growth opportunity in our
numerous announcements throughout fiscal 2007 for announced
contracts valued at approximately $16.4 million for the design
and supply of Separation/Filtration Equipment. Additionally, we
expect our separation equipment to be in demand, as nuclear
power plants continue to invest in life extenston and additional
capacity and the construction of new nuclear power plants occurs
internationally.




ENVIRONMENTAL

Clearly, the performance of our environmental systems unit,
both domestically and in international markets, was a highlight
of fiscal 2007. The award of a contract to supply twelve simple
cycle turhine exhaust systems, including Selective Catalytic
Reduction {SCR) technolagy, to a world-leading combustion
tuthine manufacturer totaling approximately $40 million, was
just one of many opportunities that our environmental unit was
successful in winning in fiscal 2007. The growth drivers for our
environmental business are significant. The anticipated increase
in demand for refining capacity and power generation, combined
with ever more stringent regulatory requirements, increases the
likelihood that new power plants will be constructed in the United
States. These new plants will require environmental systems to
reduce NOx emissions. Internationally, more power generation
units are installing environmental systems in order to comply with
more stringent emission standards. Finally, worldwide expansion
of refineries and gas to liquids plants in conjunction with the
global need o reduce pollution creates additional demand
for our environmental systems. In fiscal 2007, Peerless had the
opportunity to demonstrare its tradition as the leader in SCR
system applications throughout the world when it was awarded a
contract to apply SCR technology to a facility that was utilizing
hio-fuel boilers. These new and complex applications require
expertise in engineering and design, a hallmark of Peerless. We
believe the continuing cost increases in energy, along with the
global desire for renewable fuels that when processed are as clean
as possible, should provide Peerless with numerous opportunities.

A STRONG QUTLOOK FOR FISCAL 2008

Our outlook for 2008 is solid ~ and here again, our long-term
strategy is the key. We have created a well-diversified portfolio
of separation and filtration products and complemented that
strength with a robust environmental business. We are fortunate
to be in two good industries with inherent growth opportunities
driven by world-wide demand for cleaner air and liquids. Demand
for Peerless products continues to grow around the world, as
evidenced by our high backlog which, together with our steady
quotation activicy, allows us to remain optimistic about our

prospects for the new fiscal vear.

None of this would be possible without the business we enjoy
with our customers. To our customers we say, “Thank you for the
apportunity to serve you.”

We would also like to recognize the efforts of our employees
everywhere for the important contributions they make to our
current and furure success. We are grateful for their efforts and

appreciate their dedication.

Finally, to our shareholders, our sincere thanks for your continued
interest and invesrment in Peerless.

Sincerely,

Pt 6% Mir S

Peter J. Burlage Sherrill Stone

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Chairman
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. You should not place undue reliance on these
statements. These forward-looking statements include statements that reflect the current views of our senior
management with respect to our financial performance and future events with respect to our business and our
industry in general. Statements that include the words “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “project,”
“forecast,” “estimate,” “may,” “should,” “anticipate” and similar statements of a future or forward-looking
nature identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements address matters that involve risks and
uncertainties. Accordingly, there are or will be important factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those indicated in these statements. We believe that these factors include, but are not limited
to, the following:

LI TS

* changes in the power generation industry, the petroleum industry and/or the economy;
¢ changes in the price, supply or demand for natural gas;

® changes in current environmental legislation;

* increased competition;

®  changes in our ability to conduct business outside the United States, including changes in  foreign
laws and regulations;

® decreased demand for our products;

¢ the effects of U.S. involvement in hostilities with other countries and large-scale acts of terrorism, or
the threat of hostilities or terrorist acts;

¢  the effects of natural disasters; and
® loss of the services of any of our senior management or other key employees.

The foregoing factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read together with the other
cautionary statements included in this and other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including the information in Item 1A — “Risk Factors” of this Report. If one or more events related to these or
other risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results
may differ materially from what we anticipate.




PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

General

As used in this Report, references to the “Company,” the “Registrant,” “we,” “us” and “our” refers to the
consolidated business operations of Peerless Mfg. Co. and its subsidiaries, unless the context indicates
otherwise.

Peerless Mfg. Co. was organized in 1933 as a proprietorship and was incorporated as a Texas
corporation in 1946. The Company is engaged in the business of designing, engineering, manufacturing and
selling highly specialized products used for the abatement of air pollution and products for the separation and
filtration of contaminants from gases and liquids. We market our products worldwide.

We have two wholly owned subsidiaries, one incorporated in Texas and the other in the United
Kingdom. Our executive offices are located at 14651 North Dallas Parkway, Suite 500, Dallas, Texas 75254.
Our telephone number at this location is (214) 357-6181. Our website may be accessed at
www.peerlessmfg.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into this Report. Our fiscal year ends
on June 30. References herein to “fiscal 2005,” “fiscal 2006,” and *“fiscal 2007 refer to our fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007, respectively.

During the last five years, numerous factors have impacted the construction of new power plants and the
completion of environmental retrofit projects. Those factors include the uncertainty in fuel supply and
valatility in the price of fuel to meet power plant demands, changes in economic conditions and regulatory
uncertainties and the associated nitrogen oxide reduction initiatives. In response to these market and economic
drivers, and their impact on our revenues, we have taken steps in an effort to ensure our operating activities are
streamlined and we are positioned with a competitive cost structure necessary for our long-term success. The
decision to discontinue our Boiler business in fiscal 2004 was in response to these market and economic
conditions. For further discussion of the discontinued Boiler business, see Note D “Discontinued
Operations” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Report. We will continue to
monitor our operating activities in an effort to ensure our cost structure remains competitive.

Operating Segments and Products

We operate our business through two reportable segments, our Environmental Systems business and our
Separation Filtration Systems business.

Our Separation Filtration Systems segment accounted for 62.9% of our revenues in fiscal 2007. In this
segment, we design, engineer, manufacture and sell specialized products known as “separators” or “filters”
which are used for a variety of purposes in cleaning gases and liquids as they move through piping systems.
These products are used primarily to remove solid and liquid contaminants from natural gas, as well as
saltwater aerosols from combustion air intake on shipboard gas turbine and diesel engines. Separators are also
used in nuclear power plants to remove water from saturated steam.




Our Environmental Systems segment accounted for 37.1% of our revenues in fiscal 2007. In this segment,
we design, engineer, manufacture and sell environmental control systems, which are used for air pollution
abatement. Our main product, Selective Catalytic Reduction Systems, which we refer to as “SCR Systems,” is
used to convert nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions from exhaust gases into nitrogen and water vapor., NOx
emissions are caused by burning hydrocarbon fuels, such as coal, gasoline, natural gas and oil, as well as
organic bio-fuels such as wood products, grasses and grains. These systems are totally integrated, complete
with instruments, controls and related valves and piping. In this segment, we also offer systems to reduce
other pollutants, such as carbon monoxide (CQ}, particulate matter and volatile organic compounds.

For additional information about each of our segments, please see Note ¢ — “Industry Segment and
Geographic Information” in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Report and Item
7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this
Report.

Although we manufacture and stock a limited number of products for immediate delivery, the majority of
the products we produce are custom designed based on specific customer requirements or specifications,
generally pursuant to long-term fixed priced contracts. In certain cases, our products are designed by us but
manufactured by subcontractors or contract vendors under our supervision.

Patents, Licenses and Product Development

To protect our intellectual property rights, we depend upon a combination of patents, trademarks, and
non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with our employees, subcontractors, contract vendors,
customers and others having business dealings with us, We have existing patents and patent applications
pending on certain products and processes that we believe are important to our business. These include
patents on vane designs, separator profiles, environmental control equipment, and marine/separator filtration
systems. [n addition, many of our products are proprietary and are sold utilizing our proven technology and
knowledge of the applications.

We believe that our employees are highly skilled in the technology required to design, engineer, and
manufacture the products in both of our business segments. Our capital expenditures for new product
development and improvements were not material in any of the fiscal years presented.

Manufacturing and Qutsourcing

Our products are fabricated utilizing a combination of our manufacturing capabilities, subcontractors and
contract vendors. In the last three fiscal years, manufacturing outsourced to subcontractors accounted for a
significant percentage of our costs of goods sold: 42% in fiscal 2007, 47% in fiscal 2006 and 49% in fiscal
2005. We believe the use of outsourcing relationships provides us with the flexibility to meet our customers’
needs without significantly increasing our capital expenditures. In addition, we maintain relationships with
subcontractors outside the United States to accommodate contracts that require local content and for
potentially competitive advantages. Qur subcontractors generally manufacture products on a fixed-price basis.
We regularly review our subcontractor and contract vendor relationships to ensure competitive pricing, quality
workmanship standards as well as on-time delivery performance.

We maintain our manufacturing capabilities and generally manufacture products, the complexity of which
may preclude production by our subcontractors and contract vendors and where necessary, to protect our
proprietary technology.




Raw Materials

We purchase raw materials and component parts essential to our business from a number of sources that
we believe are reliable. While we have experienced increases in cost and order lead-times associated with our
steel products and components during fiscal 2007, we have been able to mitigate the impact to our business
through forward purchases contracts and escalation clauses in our contracts. We believe that raw materials
and component parts will be available in sufficient quantities to meet our anticipated demand.

Customers

Gas separators, filters and conditioning systems produced by our Separation Filtration Systems segment
are sold to gas producers, gas gathering, transmission and distribution companies, chemical manufacturers and
oil refineries, either directly or through contractors engaged to build plants and pipelines. These products are
also sold to manufacturers of compressors, turbines, and nuclear and conventional steam generating equipment.
Marine separation and filtration systems are sold primarily to shipbuilders.

Our Environmental Systems products are sold to power producers, power developers, engineering and
construction companies, heat recovery steam generator manufacturers, boiler manufacturers, refineries,
petrochemical plants and others who desire or may be required by environmental regulations to reduce NOx
emissions and ground level ozone of which NOX is a precursor.

We market our products worldwide through independent representatives that sell on a commission basis.
We also sell preducts directly to customers through our internal sales force.

Neither of our business segments is dependent upon any single customer or group of customers.
However, the custom-designed and project-specific nature of our business can cause year-to-year variances in
sales to our major customers. During fiscal 2007, one customer accounted for 14% of our consolidated
revenues. In fiscal 2006, one customer accounted for 9% of our revenues and in fiscal 2005, a different
customer accounted for 8% of our revenues.

Our industry segment and geographic information included in Note Q in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements is based on the country location of the subsidiary that originates the order. Sales for the
United States were $66.8 million, $53.3 million, and $40.3 million for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. Sales for the U.K. were $8.4 million, $10.1 million, and $10.8 million for fiscal 2007, 2006, and
2005 respectively.

Sales to customers outside the Unites States have been an integral part of our business for more than 40
years. Our global offices and worldwide independent representative network allows us t0 sell to most
geographic regions. The following amounts are classified as domestic or international based upon the
origination of the order. During fiscal 2007, sales to customers outside the United States were $28.1 million,
or 37.3% of our revenues, compared to $30.9 million or 48.7% of our revenues during fiscal 2006, and $20.8
million, or 40.7% of our revenues in fiscal 2005. For discussion of our risks related to foreign currency, see
[tem 7A — “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” in this Report.

Backlog

Qur backlog of uncompleted orders was $97 million at June 30, 2007, compared to $40 million at June 30,
2006. Backlog has been calculated under our customary practice of including uncompleted orders for products
that are deliverable in future periods but potentially could be changed or cancelled. Of our backlog at June 30,
2007, 92% is scheduled ta be completed during our next fiscal year, compared to 85% at June 30, 2006. In




fiscal 2007, we received significant contract awards in each of our business segments. Demand for separation
and filtration products and environmental systems continues to improve throughout the world.

Competition

A number of domestic and international companies manufacture and sell products that compete with our
Environmental Systems and Separation Filtration Systems although competition in both segments is
fragmented. We believe that price, experience, performance, reliability, technology and service are the prime
competitive factors in our markets. We believe that we strongly compete in all these areas.
Environmental Regulation

We do not believe that our compliance with federal, state or local statutes or regulations relating to the
protection of the environment has had any material effect upon capital expenditures, earnings or our
competitive position. We believe that our manufacturing processes do not generate significant hazardous
substances.
Employees

We employed 210 persons at June 30, 2007. None of our employees are represented by a labor union or
are subject to a collective bargaining agreement. We have not experienced any material labor difficulties
during fiscal 2007 and we believe our employee relations are good.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers as of September 1, 2007 were as follows:

Name Age Position with the Company
Peter J. Burlage 43 Chief Executive Officer
Sean P. McMenamin 42 Vice President, Environmental Systems
Henry G. Schopfer, 111 60 Chief Financial Officer
Jon P. Segelhorst 37 Vice President, Pressure Products
David Taylor 42 Vice President, Separation Systems and Asia Pacific Qperations

Peter I. Burlage joined the Company in 1992. He was appointed as President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company effective June 30, 2006. Previously, Mr. Burlage served as Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer of the Company since October 2003. Prior to that time, he served as Vice
President of the Company’s Environmental Systems Division from 2001 to 2005, Vice President of
Engineering from 2000 to 2001 and as Manager of the Company’s SCR Division from 1997 to 2000. Mr.
Burlage earned a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Texas, Arlington and an M.B.A. from
Baylor University.

Sean P. McMenamin joined the Company in 2001. He has served as the Company’s Vice President,
Environmental Systems since January 2006. Previously, Mr. McMenamin served as the Company’s product
manager for refinery and retrofit applications in the Company’s Environmental Systems business segment
since 2001. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. McMenamin was a project manager for Telcordia Technologies
from 1999 to 2001, and served in various positions in the environmental and power business at Foster Wheeler
from 1994 to 1999. Mr. McMenamin earned a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the New Jersey Institute
of Technology and an M.B.A. in Finance from Lehigh University.




Henry G. Schopfer, I joined the Company in October 2005 as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Schopfer served as Chief Financial Officer of T-Netix, Inc., a
telecommunications company from 2001 to 2005, as Chief Financial Officer of Wireless One, Inc., a
communications company, from 1996 to 2000 and as Corporate Controller and Chief Financial Officer of
Daniel Industries, Inc., a manufacturer of fluid measurement products and systems for the energy industry
from 1988 to 1996. Mr. Schopfer earned a B.S. in Accounting from Louisiana State University and is a
Certified Public Accountant.

Jon P. Segelhorst joined Peerless in August 2006 as Vice President, Pressure Products. Prior to joining
the Company. Mr. Segelhorst managed surge protection and DSL product lines for Corning Cable Systems
from 1996 to 2006. Mr. Segethorst also holds several U.S. patents related to fiber optic hardware. Mr.
Segelhorst earned a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the Umiversity of Texas at Austin and an M.B.A.
from Baylor University.

David Taylor joined the Company in 1988 as Research Engineer. He has served as the Company’s Vice
President. Separation Systems since 2000. Since joining Peerless, Mr. Taylor has served the Company in a
variety of engineering, sales and management positions. From 1997 through 1999, Mr. Taylor served as
Director of Sales and Engineering in our Singapore office in support of our Asia Pacific operations. In July
2004, Mr. Taylor resumed responsibility for our Asia Pacific operations. Mr. Taylor earned a B.S. in
Mechanical Engineering from Southern Methodist University.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

In evaluating the Company, the factors described below should be considered carefully. The occurrence
of one or more of these events could significantly and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Changes in the price, supply or demand for natural gas could have an adverse impact on our sales of
Separation Filtration Systems and our operating results.

A large portion of our Separation Filtration Systems business is driven by the construction of natural gas
production and transportation infrastructure. Increased demand for natural gas may result in the construction
of natural gas production facilities and facilities to transport the gas to its end destination, for example
pipelines and liquefied natural gas ("LNG”) processing plants. Higher prices of natural gas, while beneficial
to exploration activities and the financing of new projects, can adversely impact the demand for natural gas.
Excess supply could also negatively impact the price of natural gas, which could discourage spending on
related capital projects.

Changes in the power generation industry could have an adverse impact on sales of our Environmental
Systems and our operating resulls.

The demand for our Environmental Systems depends in part on the continued construction of power
generation plants and the upgrade of existing power and process plants. The power generation industry is
cyclical and has experienced periods of slow or no growth in the past. Any change in the power plant industry
that results in a decrease in new power plant construction or a decline in refurbishing existing power plants
could have a material adverse impact on our Environmental Systems revenues and our results of operations.




Changes in current environmental legislation could have an adverse impact on the sale of our
Environmental Systems and on our operating results.

Our Environmental Systems business is primarily driven by capital spending by our customers to comply
with environmental regulations. Laws and regulations governing the discharge of pollutants into the
environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment or human health has a significant
impact on the increased use of products such as our Environmental Systems in the United States. These laws
include U.S. federal statutes such as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA), the Clean
Water Act, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR), and the regulations implementing these
statutes, as well as similar laws and regulations at state and local levels and in other countries. These U.S.
laws and regulations may change and other countries may not adopt similar laws and regulations. Qur
business may be adversely impacted to the extent that current regulations requiring the reduction of NOx
emissions are repealed, amended or implementation dates delayed or to the extent that regulatory authorities
reduce enforcement.

Competition could result in lower sales and decreased margins.

We operate in highly competitive markets worldwide. Competition could result in not only a reduction in
our sales, but may also lower the prices we can charge for our products. To remain competitive we must be
able to anticipate and respond quickly to our customers’ needs and enhance and upgrade our existing products
and services to meet those needs. We must also be able to continue to price our products competitivety. Qur
competitors may develop cheaper, more efficient products or may be willing to charge lower prices in order to
increase market share. Some of our competitors have more capital and resources than we do and may be better
able to take advantage of market opportunities or adapt more quickly to changes in customer requirements.

If actual costs for our projects with fixed-price contracts exceed our original estimates, our profits will be
reduced or we may suffer losses.

The majority of our contracts are fixed-priced contracts from which we have limited ability to recover
cost overruns. Because of the large scale and long-term nature of our contracts, unanticipated cost increases
may occur as a result of several factors, including:

increases in cost or shortages of components, materials or labor;
unanticipated technical problems;

required project modifications not initiated by the customer; and
suppliers’ or subcontractors’ failure to perform.

Any of these factors could delay delivery of our products. Our contracts often provide for liquidated
damages in the case of late delivery. Unanticipated costs that we cannot pass on to our customers, for example
the increases in steel prices or the payment of liquidated damages under fixed contracts, could negatively
impact our profits.

Customers may cancel or delay projects. As a result, our backlog may not be indicative of our future
revenue.

Customers may cancel or delay projects for reasons beyond our control. Our orders generally contain
cancellation provisions which permit us to recover our costs, and for most contracts, a portion of our
anticipated profit, in the event a customer cancels an order. If a customer elects to cancel an order, we may
not realize the full amount of revenues included in our backlog. If projects are delayed, the timing of our




revenues could be affected and projects may remain in our backlog for extended periods of time. Revenue
recognition occurs over long periods of time and is subject to unanticipated delays. If we receive relatively
large orders in any given quarter, fluctuations in the levels of our quarterly backlog can result because the
backlog in that quarter may reach levels that may not be sustained in subsequent quarters. As a result, our
backlog may not be indicative of our future revenues.

Our ability to conduct business outside the United States may be adversely affected by factors outside of our
control and our revenues and profits from international sales could be adversely impacted.

Revenue outside the United States represented 37.3%, 48.7% and 40.7% of our consolidated revenues
during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Our operations and earnings throughout the world have been,
and may in the future be, affected from time to time in varying degrees by a number of factors, including
changes in foreign laws and regulations, regional economic uncertainty, political instability, customns and
tariffs, government sanctions, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and tax rates. The likelihood of
the occurrence and the overall effect on our business vary from country to country and are not predictable.
These factors may result in a decline in revenues or profitability and could adversely affect our ability to
expand our business outside of the United States and from time-to-time may impact our ability to deliver our
products and collect our receivables.

Our financial performance may vary significantly from period to period, making it difficult to estimate
Sfuture revenue.

Our annual revenues and earnings have varied in the past and are likely to vary in the future. Our
contracts generally stipulate customer specific delivery terms and may have contract cycles of a year or more,
which subjects these contracts to many factors beyond our control. In addition, contracts that are significantly
larger in size than our typical contracts tend to intensify their impact on our annual operating results.
Furthermore, as a significant portion of our operating costs are fixed, an unanticipated decrease in our
revenues, a delay or cancellation of orders in backlog, or a decrease in the demand for our products, may have
a significant impact on our annual operating results. Therefore, our annual operating results may be subject to
significant variations and our operating performance in any period may not be indicative of our future
performance.

Changes in our product mix can have a significant impact on our profit margins.

Certain of our products have higher profit margins than others. Consequently, changes in the product mix
of our sales from quarter-to-quarter or from year-to-year can have a significant impact on our reported profit
margins. Certain of our products also have a much higher internally manufactured cost component. Therefore,
changes from quarter-to-quarter or from year-to-year can have a significant impact on our reported margins
through a change in our manufacturing absorption.

Our products are covered by warranties. Unanticipated warranty costs for defective products could
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations and reputation.

We offer warranty periods of various lengths to our customers depending upon the specific product and
terms of the customer agreement. Among other things, warranties require us to repair or replace faulty
products. While we continually monitor our warranty claims and provide a reserve for estimated warranty
issues on an on-going basis, an unanticipated claim could have a material adverse impact on our results of
operations. In some cases, we may be able to recover a portion of our warranty cost from a subcontractor if
the subcontractor supplied the defective product or performed the service. However, this may not always be
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possible. The need to repair or replace products with design or manufacturing defects could temporarily delay
the sale of new products, reduce our profits, cause us to suffer a loss and could adversely affect our reputation.

Product liability claims not covered by insurance could adversely affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

We may be subject to product liability claims for personal injury or property damage. While we maintain
product liability insurance coverage to protect us in the event of a claim, our coverage may not be adequate to
cover the cost of defense and the potential award in the event of a claim. In addition, industry awareness of
actual or perceived problems with our products could adversely affect our reputation and reduce sales.

A significant portion of our accounts receivable are related to large contracts from customers in the same
industry, which increases our exposure to credit risk.

We monitor the credit worthiness of our customers. Significant portions of our sales are to customers
who place large orders for custom products and whose activities are related to the power and oil/gas industries.
As a result. our exposure to credit risk is affected to some degree by conditions within these industries and
governmental and/or political conditions. We attempt to reduce our exposure to credit risk by requiring
progress payments and letters of credit. However, unanticipated events that affect our customers could have a
materially adverse impact on our operating results.

Changes in billing terms can increase our exposure to working capital and credit risk.

Our products are generally sold under contracts that allow us to either bill upon the completion of certain
agreed upon milestones, or upon actual shipment of the product. We attempt to negotiate progress-billing
milestones on large contracts to help us manage the working capital and to reduce the credit risk associated
with these large contracts. Consequently, shifts in the billing terms of the contracts in our backlog from period
to pertod can increase our requirement for working capital and can increase our exposure to credit risk.

The terms and conditions of our credit facility impose restrictions on our operations, including restrictions
on our ability to raise additional capital, if needed.

The terms and conditions of our revolving credit facility impose restrictions that affect, among other
things, our ability to incur debt, make capital expenditures, merge, sell assets, make distributions, and create or
incur liens. Our ability to borrow under our credit facility is also subject to our compliance with certain
financial covenants. Qur ability to comply with these covenants may be affected by events beyond our control
and we cannot assure that we will achieve operating results that will allow us to meet the requirements of the
credit agreement. A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default under our credit facility. In the
event of a default, the lender could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under our credit facility to be
immediately due and payable.

Our ability to satisfy any debt obligations will depend upon our future operating performance, which will

be affected by prevailing economic, financial and business conditions and other factors, some of which are
beyond our control. We anticipate that borrowings from our existing revolving credit facility, or the
refinancing of our revolving credit facility, and cash provided by operating activities, should provide sufficient
funds to finance capital expenditures, working capital and otherwise meet our operating expenses and service
our debt requirements as they become due. However, in the event that we require additional capital, there can
be no assurance that we will be able to raise the necessary capital when needed or on satisfactory terms.




Our business is subject to risks of terrorist acts, acts of war and natural disasters.

Terrorist acts. acts of war. or national disasters may disrupt our operations, as well as those of our
customers. These types of acts have created. and continue Lo create. economic and political uncertainties and
have contributed to global economic instability. Future terrorist activities. military or security operations, or
natural disasters could weaken the domestic/global economies and create additional uncertainties. thus forcing
our customers to reduce their capital spending. or cancel or delay already planned construction projects. which
could have a material adverse impact on our business, operating results and financial condition.

The inability of vur engineering and/or manufacturing operations to sufficiently scale up operations in
response to unexpected spikes in orders with short cycle times directly impacts our ability to absorb our
manufacturing overhead expense.

Our engineering and manufacturing operations require a highly skilled workforce for which there is
increasing demand and short supply in a very competitive environment. Conscquently, unexpected spikes in
demand to produce sales orders that require tight delivery and short order cycle times may require us to
outsource the engineering and/or manufacturing of these orders. This practice could ncgatively affect our
profit margins. through higher unabsorbed manufacturing costs.

Our ability to operate effectively could be impaired if we fail to attract and retain key personnel.

OQur ability to operate our businesses and implement our strategies depends, in part. on the efforts of
our executive officers and other key employees. In addition, our future success will depend on. among other
factors. our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. We do not have employment contracts with all of
our executive officers. The loss of the services of one or more key employees or the failure to attract or retain
other qualified personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business or business prospects. In
addition. we do not maintain key-person insurance on the lives of any of our executive otticers and the loss of
any one of them could disrupt our business.

Our customers may require us to perform portions of our projects in their local countries.

Certain countrics have regulations, or in some cases, customer preferences, requiring that a certain degree
of local content be included in projects destined for installation in their country. These requirements may
negatively impact our profit margins and present project management 155u€s.

The implementation of enterprise resource planning software will require substantial resources and could
initially have a negative impact on our manufacturing capabilities.

We intend to implement enterprise resource planning software n fiscal 2008. This implementation will
require significant resources and could initially detract from our manufacturing cfficiency during the
implementation phase. The implementation will require significant efforts from our existing personnel. The
complexities of the implementation and additional demands on our staff could have a material adverse eficct
on our business.

Our internal control over financial reporting required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
may be inadequate.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires us to furnish a management certification and auditor
attestation regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. As a public company,
we are required to report. among other things. control deficiencies that constitute a “material weakness™ or




changes in internal control that materially affect, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control
over financial reporting. A “material weakness” is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the

registrant’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Complying with Section 404 is time consuming and costly. Failure to comply with Section 404 or the
report by us of a material weakness may cause investors to lose confidence in our consolidated financial
statements and the trading price of our common stock may decline. If we fail to remedy any material
weakness, our financial statements may be inaccurate, our access to the capital markets may be restricted and
the trading price of our common stock may decline.

Our common stock is thinly traded, which may make it difficult to sell our common stock and may make
our stock price more volatile.

The daily trading volume of our common stock is relatively low. The market price of a thinly traded
stock can be more volatile than a stock that has greater trading volume. Our financial results, large sales of
our common stock by our existing shareholders, the perception that large sales of our common stock may
occur and various factors affecting the industry in which we operate may have a significant impact on the
market price of our common stock. In recent years, the stock market has experienced a high level of price and
volume volatility, and market prices for the stocks of many companies have experienced wide price
fluctuations that have not necessarily been related to their operating performance. As a result, our
shareholders may not be able to sell their shares at the volumes, prices or times that they desire.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We own and lease office, manufacturing and warehousing facilities in various locations. Our principal
facilities are described in the following table. All facilities are currently 100% utilized.

Approximate
Location Sq. Footage General Use
Owned:
ing — 1 al S
Abilene, Texas 78,000 Manufalclurn.lg .Enwronmentd products and
Separation Filtration products

Denton, Texas 22,000 Manufacturing — Separation Filtration products
Leased.

Dallas, Texas 26,886 Corporate oftice

Dallas, Texas 7,560 Research and development

Denton, Texas 16,000 Manufacturing — Separation Filtration products

Essex, U.K. 4,090 Sales, engineering and administration office

Singapore 2,300 Sales, engineering and administration office

While we believe our office and manufacturing facilities are adequate and suitable for our present
requirements, we periodically review our space requirements and consolidate and dispose of, or lease or sublet,
facilities we no longer require and acquire new space, if our needs dictate.

Pursuant to the terms of our revolving credit facility, we have agreed not to pledge our facilities for any
other obligations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On April 25, 2005, we received notice that in 2003 we allegedly received $900,000 of preferential
transfers in connection with the Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing by Erie Power Technologies, Inc. (“Eric Power™).
We reached an agreement with the bankruptcy estate of Erie Power to settle and resolve the litigation for
$420,000. The settlement was consummated and the litigation dismissed in the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

From time to time we are involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of our
business. We do not believe the disposition of any existing matter will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations. See Note K — “Commitments and Contingencies” in
our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Report.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PART II

Unless otherwise indicated, the share, per share and dividend per share information reflected in this report
have been adjusted to reflect the Registrant’s two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend in June
2007.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock, par value $1.00 per share, is listed on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol
“PMFG.” The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of the daily high and low sale
prices for our common stock as reported by NASDAQ. The share prices have been adjusted for our two-for-
one stock split in June 2007,

Fiscal Year High Low
2006  First Quarter $ 9.53 $  7.06
Second Quarter 8.75 7.56
Third Quarter 9.88 1.96
Fourth Quarter 11.98 9.20
2007  First Quarter $ 1330 $ 10.11
Second Quarter 13.41 11.03
Third Quarter 16.25 11.48
Fourth Quarter 2227 15.42

As of September 1, 2007, there were approximately 99 record holders of our common stock. We did not
pay cash dividends, nor did we repurchase any of our common stock, in either fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2006. Cash
dividends may be paid, from time to time, on our common stock as our Board of Directors deems appropriate
after consideration of our continued growth rate, operating results, financial condition, cash requirements,
compliance with the financial and other restrictive covenants of our bank credit facility, and other related
factors. We do not have a stock repurchase program.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes certain selected financial data that should be read in conjunction with
Item 7 — “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 8 — “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Report. The data has been adjusted for our two-for-one stock split in June 2007,

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Operating results:

Revenues $75.141 $63.411 $51.,063 $59.761 $64,854
Cost of goods sold 51.343 45978 37,356 40,959 47,842

Gross profit 23,798 17,433 13,707 18,802 17,012

Operating expenses 15.547 16,687 14,409 14,929 16,429

Operating income (loss) 8.251 746 (702) 3.873 583

Other income (expense) 589 455 63 24) 727

Income tax benefit (expense) {2,928) (660) 113 (1,447 (399)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations 5.912 541 (526) 2.402 911

Net loss from discontinued operations - (115) (66) (364) (1.290)
Net earnings (loss) 3 5912 $ 420 § (592) $ 2,038 5 (379)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 5 092 $ 0.09 S (0.09 $ 039 $ Q.15

Loss from discontinued operations $ - $ (0.02) § (0.01) $ (0.06) $ 02D
Earnings (loss) $ 092 § 007 $ (0.10 $ 0.33 $ (0.06)

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Diluted 6,427 6,269 6,057 6,088 6,026

(Certain earnings per sharé amounts may no! total due io rounding.)

As of June 30,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(Amounts in thousands)

Financial position:

Working capital $30.622 $22.930 $20,272 $20,529 $17,771
Current assels 64,106 45,172 35,696 35,331 39,223
Total assets 68,671 48,159 39,804 39,475 43,763
Current liabilitics 33,484 22,242 15,424 14,802 21,452
Total liabilities 35,134 22242 15514 14,802 21,452
Shareholders' equity 33,537 25917 24,290 24,673 22,311




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Results of Operations
The following summarizes our consolidated statements of operations as a percentage of net revenues:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2003
Net revenues 1000 % 100.0 % 1000 %
Cost of goods sold 68.3 72.5 73.2
Gross profit 31.7 275 26.8
Operating expenses 20.7 26.3 28.2
Operating income (loss) 11.0 1.2 (1.4)
Other income 0.8 0.7 0.1
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes 11.8 1.9 (1.3}
Income tax {expense) benefit (3.9 (1. 0.2
Net earnings (loss} from continuing operations 7.9 0.9 (1.1)
Loss from discontinued operations. net of tax - 0.2) {0.1)
Net earnings (loss) 79 % 0.7 % (1.2 %

Cost of goods sold includes manufacturing and distribution costs for products sold. The manufacturing
and distribution costs include material, direct and indirect labor, manufacturing overhead, sub-contract work,
inbound and outbound freight, purchasing, receiving, inspection, warehousing, internal transfer costs, and
other costs of our manufacturing and distribution processes. Cost of goods sold also includes the costs of
commissiontng the equipment and warranty related costs.

Operating expenses include sales and marketing expenses, engineering and project management expenses
and general and administrative expenses.

1

Sales and marketing expenses include payroll, employee benefits, stock-based compensation and other
employee-related costs associated with sales and marketing personnel. Sales and marketing expenses also
include travel and entertainment, advertising, promotions, trade shows, seminars and other programs, and sales
commissions paid to independent sales representatives,

Engineering and project management expenses include payroll, employee benefits, stock-based
compensation and other employee-related costs associated with engineering, project management and field
service personnel. Additionally, engineering and project management expenses include the cost of sub-
contracted engineering services,

General and administrative expenses include payroll, employee benefits, stock-based compensation and
other employee-related costs and costs associated with executive management, finance, accounting, human
resources, information systems, and other administrative employees. General and administrative costs also
include facility costs, insurance, audit fees, legal fees, reporting expense, professional services, and other
administrative fees.
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Results of Operations — Consolidated
Revenues. The following summarizes consolidated revenues (dolfars in thousands):

Year ended June 30,

2007 % of Total 2006 % of Total 2005 % of Total

Domestic $47.080 62.7% $32.513 51.3% $30,248 59.3%
International 28,061 37.3% 3(»,898 48.7% 20,815 40.7%
Total $75.141 100.0% $63.411 100.0% $51.063 100.0%

We classify revenue as domestic or international based upon the origination of the order. Revenue
generated by orders originating from within the United States is classified as domestic revenue. Revenue
generated by orders originating from a country other than the United States is classified as international
revenue.

For fiscal 2007. total revenues increased $11,730, or 18.5%, to $75.141 from $63.411 in fiscal 2006.
Domestic revenues increased $14,567, or 44.8% from $32,513 in fiscal 2006 to $47,080 in fiscal 2007.
International revenues decreased $2,837, or 9.2% from $30,898 in fiscal 2006 to $28,061 in fiscal 2007. The
increase in our domestic revenues is primarily a result of the increase in our Environmental Systems sales
related 1o power plant expansion. The decrease in our international revenues is primarily related to the
completion of a large environmental system in fiscal 2006 that was not replicated in the current year.

For fiscal 2006, total revenues increased $12.348, or 24.2%, to $63.411 from $51,063 in fiscal 2003.
Domestic revenues increased $2,265. or 7.5%, from $30,248 in fiscal 2005 10 $32,513 in fiscal 2006.
International revenues increased $10.083, or 48.4%. from $20,815 in fiscal 2005 to $30,898 in fiscal 2006.
The increase in our domestic revenues was related to the increase in our Separation Filtration Systems sales
partially offset by a decline in our domestic Environmental Systems sales. The increase in our international
revenues related primarily to an increase of gas separation and filtration equipment sales in Canada and Latin
America, due to the increased demand for natural gas.

Gross Profit. The following summarizes revenues, cost of goods sold, and gross profit (dollars in
thousaneds):

Year ended June 30,

% of % of % of

2007 Revenues 2006 Revenuces 2005 Revenues

Revenues $75.141 100.0% $63.411 100.0% $51,063 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 51,343 68.3% 45,978 72.5% 37.356 73.2%
Gross profit $23.798 31.7% $17,433 27.5% $13,707 26.8%

Our gross profit during any particular period may be impacted by several factors, primarily sales volume,
shifts in our product mix, material cost changes, and warranty and start-up (commissioning) costs. Shifts in
the geographic composition of our sales can also have a significant impact on our reported margins.

For fiscal 2007, our gross profit increased $6,363, or 36.5%, from $17,433 in fiscal 2006 to $23,798 in
fiscal 2007. Our gross profit, as a percentage of revenues, increased from 27.5% in fiscal 2006 to 31.7% in
fiscal 2007. The increase in gross margin was due mainly to the increased revenues of $11,730. The gross
profit margin was favorably impacted by the shift to increased revenue from our environmental products and
reduced warranty and stari-up costs.
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For fiscal 2006, our gross profit increased $3,726, or 27.2%, to $17,433 in fiscal 2006 from $13,707 in
fiscal 2003. Our gross profit, as a percentage of revenues, increased from 26.8% in fiscal 2005 to 27.5% in
fiscal 2006. The increased gross profit resuited primarily from a decrease in our start-up and warranty costs,
partially offset by shifts in our product mix and increased cost of material. The decrease of our start-up and
warranty costs from continuing operations, from 3.6% of revenue in fiscal 2005 to 2.6% of revenue in fiscal
2006, primarily resulted from reduced costs associated with the commissioning of certain Environmental
Systems projects.

Operating Expenses. The following summarizes operating expenses (dollars in thousands):

Year ended June 30,

% of % of % of
2007 Revenues 2006 Revenues 2005 Revenues
Sales and marketing $ 8,127 10.8% $ 6,645 10.5% $ 6,031 11.8%
Engineering and project management 4,094 5.5% 3,480 5.5% 3,608 7.1%
General and administrative 6,827 9.1% 6,562 10.3% 4,770 9.3%
Gain on sale of property (3,501) (4.7%) - - - -
Total operating expenses $15,547 20.7% $16,687 26.3% $14.409 28.2%

For fiscal 2007, our operating expenses (excluding the gain on sale of property of $3,501) from
continuing operations increased by $2,361, or 14.1%, from $16,687 in fiscal 2006 to $19,048 in fiscal 2007.
As a percentage of revenues, these expenses decreased from 26.3% in fiscal 2006 to 25.3% in fiscal 2007.
Sales and marketing expenses increased from $6,645 in fiscal 2006 to $8,127 in fiscal 2007 due primarily to
increased sales commissions attributable to increased orders and revenue. In addition, sales and marketing
expenses increased due to increased staffing to support the growth in business activities. Qur engineering and
project management expenses increased from $3,480 in fiscal 2006 to $4,094 in fiscal 2007 due to the need for
additional staffing and outside engineering services to support increased sales. Qur general and administrative
expenses increased from $6,562 in fiscal 2006 to $6,827 in fiscal 2007 primarily due to professional expenses
related to compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the cost of the Erie Power bankruptcy

settlement, partially offset by reduced compensation expenses from one time charges that occurred in fiscal
2006.

For fiscal 2006, our operating expenses from continuing operations increased by $2,278, or 15.8%, from
$14,409 in fiscal 2005 to $16,687 in fiscal 2006. As a percentage of revenues, these expenses decreased from
28.2% in fiscal 2005 to 26.3% in fiscal 2006 due to the increase in our sales volume. Sales and marketing
expenses increased from $6,031 in fiscal 2005 to $6,645 in fiscal 2006 due primarily to an increase in our
commission expense during the current period, which was directly related to the increase in our revenue. Our
engineering and project management expenses decreased from $3,608 in fiscal 2005 to $3.480 in fiscal 2006
as a result of our cost control measures and product standardization activities. Our general and administrative
expenses increased from $4,770 in fiscal 2005 to $6,562 in fiscal 2006 due primarily 10 a one time charge in
fiscal 2006 incurred in connection with a special project, payments under an employment agreement resulting
from the retirement of our former chief executive officer, and severance paid to a former officer. Additionally,
our general and administrative expenses increased to $6,562 in fiscal 2006, compared to $4,770 in fiscal 2005,
due to legal expenses.

Other [ncome and Expense (dollars in thousands)

For fiscal 2007, other income increased by $134 to $589 in fiscal 2007 from $455 in fiscal 2006,
primarily due to an increase in interest income.
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For fiscal 2006, other income increased by $392 from $63 in fiscal 2005 to $455 in fiscal 2006. This
was primarily due to an increase in interest income of $90, an increase in foreign currency exchange gains
associated with our U.K. operations of $123, and a decrease in miscellaneous expenses of $179.

Income Taxes (dollars in thousands)

The Company’s effective income tax rate for continuing operations was 33.1%, 55.0% and 17.7% in
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The rate in fiscal 2006 was impacted by increased state income tax
expense during the year and reduced foreign tax related benefits. Additionally, the fiscal 2005 tax rate was
impacted by increased foreign tax related benefits. For further information related to income taxes, see Item &,
Note O — “Income Taxes” in this Report.

Net Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Our net earnings from continuing operations in fiscal 2007 increased by 35,371 to net earnings of $5,912,
or 7.9% of revenues, from net earnings of $541, or 0.9% of revenues for fiscal 2006, as a result of a $3,501
gain on the sale of property, increased sales, and improved gross profit margin. These gains were partially
offset by an increase in total operating expenses. Basic earnings per share increased from net earnings of
$0.09 per share for fiscal 2006, to net earnings of $0.93 per share for fiscal 2007. Diluted earnings per share
increased from net earnings of $0.09 per share for fiscal 2006, to net earnings of $0.92 per share for fiscal
2007.

Our net earnings from continuing operations for 2006 increased by $1,067 to net earnings of $541, or
0.9% of revenues, from a net loss of $526, or 1.1% of revenues for fiscal 2005, as a result of an increase in
sales, partially offset by increased general and administrative expenses. Basic earnings (loss) per share
increased from a net loss of ($0.09) per share for fiscal 2005, to net carnings of $0.09 per share for fiscal 2006.
Diluted earnings (loss) per share increased from a net loss of (30.09) per share for fiscal 2003, to net earnings
of $0.09 per share for fiscal 2006.

Discontinued Operations (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

There was no operating income or loss from discontinued operations for fiscal 2007.

Our net loss from discontinued operations for fiscal 2006 was $115 compared to a net loss of $66 for
fiscal 2005. Our net loss in fiscal 2006 related primarily to legal expenses. Our net loss in fiscal 2005 related
primarily to costs associated with the start-up and warranty costs for boiler projects. Basic and diluted loss per
share from discontinued operations was ($0.02) per share for fiscal 2006, compared to a loss of (30.01) per

share for fiscal 2005.

Net Earnings {Loss) (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Our net earnings for fiscal 2007 were $5,912, or 7.9% of revenues, an increase of $5.486 from net
earnings for fiscal 2006 of $426, or 0.7% of revenues. Basic earnings per shared increased from net earnings
of $0.07 per share for fiscal 2006 to net earnings of $0.93 per share for fiscal 2007, and diluted earnings per
share increased from net earnings of $0.07 per share for fiscal 2006, to net earnings of $0.92 per share for

fiscal 2007,
Our net earnings for fiscal 2006 were $426, or 0.7% of revenues, an increase of $1,018 from a net loss of

$592. or 1.2% of revenues for fiscal 2005. Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share increased from a net loss
of ($0.10) per share for fiscal 2005, to net earnings of $0.07 per share for fiscal 2006.

20




Results of Operations - Segments

We have two lines of business: Environmental Systems and Separation Filtration Systems. Revenue and
operating income in this section are presented on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States (“GAAP”). Certain corporate level expenses and the gain on sale of property in
2007 have been excluded from our segment operating results and are analyzed separately.

Separation Filtration Systems

The Separation Filtration Systems segment produces specialized products known as “separators” or
“filters” which are used for a variety of purposes in cleaning gases and liquids as they move through piping
systems. Separation Filtration Systems represented 62.9%, 68.8%, and 59.7% of our revenues in fiscal years
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively,

Separation Filtration Systems revenues and operating income for the prior three fiscal years are presented
below (dollars in thousands):

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Revenue $ 47,256 $ 43,644 $ 30,472
Operating income $ 6,609 h) 5,253 h) 1,759
Operating income as % of revenue 14.0% 12.0% 5.8%

Separation Filtration Systems revenues increased by $3,612, or 8.3%, in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006. Our domestic Separation Filtration Systems revenues increased by $5,195 in fiscal 2007 compared
fiscal 2006. Our international revenues decreased by $1,583 in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006. The
increase in fiscal 2007 related primarily to an increase in domestic sales of our gas separation and filtration
products. Revenues from Separation Filtration Systems increased by $13,172, or 43.2%, in fiscal 2006 when
compared to fiscal 2005. Our domestic Separation Filtration Systems revenues increased by $5,1359 in fiscal
2006 compared to fiscal 2005. Our international revenues increased $8,013 in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal
2005. The increase in our revenues during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 related primarily to increased sales of
our gas separation and filtration products globally.

Separation Filtration Systems operating income in fiscal 2007 increased $1,356 compared to fiscal 2006.
Separation Filtration Systems operating income in fiscal 2006 increased $3,494 compared to fiscal 2005. Asa
percentage of Separation Filtration Systems revenue, operating income was 14.0%, 12.0%, and 5.8% in fiscal
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The improved operating income in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 is
primarily related to the increased revenues and gross profit.

Environmental Systems

The primary product of our Environmental Systems business is Selective Catalytic Reduction Systems,
which we refer to as “SCR Systems.” SCR Systems are integrated systems, with instruments, controls and
related valves and piping. Environmental Systems represented 37.1%, 31.2%, and 40.3% of our revenues in
fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
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Environmental Systems revenues and operating income for the prior three fiscal years are presented
below (dollars in thousands):

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Revenue 3 27,885 $ 19,767 $ 20,591
Operating income $ 4,968 3 2,055 $ 2,309
Operating income as % of revenue 17.8% 10.4% 11.2%

Environmental Systems revenues increased by $8,118, or 41.1%, in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006. The increase in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to increased demand for power and expanded refining
capacity resulting in the construction of power generation plants and refinery equipment that require
environmental control systems. Revenues from Environmental Systems decreased by $824, or 4.0%, in fiscal
2006 when compared to fiscal 2005.

Environmental Systems operating income in fiscal 2007 increased $2,913 compared to fiscal 2006 due to
increased sales and improved operating margins. Environmental Systems operating income in fiscal 2006
decreased $254 compared to fiscal 2005. As a percentage of Environmental Systems revenue, operating
income was 17.8%, 10.4%, and 11.2% in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Corporate Level Expenses

Corporate level expenses excluded from our segment operating results for the prior three fiscal years are
presented below (dollars in thousands).
Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005

Corporate level expenses (excluding the gain on sale of property of $3.501) $6.827 $6.562 $ 4770

See Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial and Results of Operations —
Operating Expenses” in this Report for additional discussion of these expenscs.

Market Outlook

Separation Filtration Systems. Strong global energy demand is creating opportunities for our
separation and filtration products. New and expanding pipelines, gas processing facilities, chemical and
petrochemical processing plants, nuclear power plants, and liquefied natural gas plants and terminals are
positively impacting the market for separation products. We believe the domestic and international markets
for our separation products will continue to remain strong as new pipelines and gas processing facilities are
developed and as nuclear power plants continue to invest in life extension and additional capacity. The
construction of new nuclear power plants internationally is expected to provide revenue opportunities.

Environmental Systems. We anticipate an increase in the demand for refining capacity and power
generation due to increasing energy consumption. We also expect that as additional air regulations come into
effect combined with this anticipated increase in demand, existing facilities will implement compliance plans,
resulting in increased spending for environmental systems. In addition, the anticipated increase in demand for
refining capacity and power generation increases the likelihood that new power plants will be constructed,
which require environmental systems to reduce NOx emissions. For example, in the United States new gas-
fired plants are anticipated to be constructed to meet peak power demands and new coal-fired power plants
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have been announced for construction over the next several years. Internationally, more power generation
units are installing environmental systems in order to comply with more stringent emission standards.
Worldwide expansion of refineries and gas to liquids plants in conjunction with the global need to reduce
pollution creates the demand for additional environmental systems.

Contingencies

On June 19, 2007, Martin-Manatee Power Partners, LLC (“MMPP”) filed a complaint against the
Company in the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida. In the
complaint, MMPP asserts claims for breach of contract and express warranty, breach of implied warranty and
indemnification against the Company, arising out of an incident in September 2005 when an electric fuel gas
start-up heater, which was a component of a fuel gas heater skid supplied by the Company to MMPP,
allegedly ruptured resulting in a fire. In the complaint, MMPP does not make a specific demand for damages,
but alleges that it has incurred approximately $5.7 million in costs to repair the damage as a result of the
incident. We believe MMPP’s claims are without merit and, with our insurance company, intend to
vigorously defend this suit.

From time to time we are involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of our
business. We do not believe the disposition of any current matter will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Backlog

Our backlog of uncompleted orders was $97 million at June 30, 2007 and $40 million at June 30, 2006.
Backlog has been calculated under our customary practice of including incomplete orders for products that are
deliverable in future periods but that may be changed or cancelled. Of our backlog at June 30, 2007, 92% is
scheduled to be completed during our next fiscal year, compared to 85% at June 30, 2006. Domestic and
international market demand for separation and filtration products and environmental systems continues to
improve.

Financial Position (dollars in thousands)

Assets. Total assets increased by $20,512 or 42.6%, from $48,159 at June 30, 2006, to $68,671 at June 30,
2007. We held cash and cash equivalents of $17,015, had working capital of $30,622, and a current liquidity
ratio of 1.91-to-1.0 at June 30, 2007. This compares with cash and cash equivalents of $6,411, working capital
of $22,930, and a current liquidity ratio of 2.03-to-1.0 at June 30, 2006. The increase in our assets is primarily
related to a $10,604 increase in cash and cash equivalents. a $4,866 increase in accounts receivable, and a
$2,085 increase in our costs and earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts,

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity. Total liabilities increased by $12,892 or 58.0%, from $22,242 at
June 30, 2006 to $35,134 at June 30, 2007. This increase in liabilities relates primarily to an increase in our
billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts of $4,369, an increase in accounts payable of
$3,357, an increase in income taxes payable of $1,501, and an increase in our accrued liabilities and other of
$1.837. The increase in our shareholders’ equity of $7,620, or 29.4%, from $25,917 at June 30, 2006 to
$33,537 at June 30, 2007 resulted primarily from an increase in retained carnings due to current year earnings.
Our debt (total liabilities)-to-equity ratio increased from .86-to-1.0 at June 30, 2006 to 1.05-to-1.0 at June 30,
2007, reflecting a 50.5% increase in our current liabilities and a 29.4% increase in our shareholders’ equity
during fiscal 2007.




Liquidity and Capital Resources (dollars in thousands)

Our cash and cash equivalents were $17,015 as of June 30, 2007, compared to $6,411 at June 30, 2006.
Cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations during fiscal 2007 was $9,422 compared to
cash used in operating activities during fiscal 2006 of $2,488 and cash provided by operating activities during
fiscal 2005 of $4,887.

Because we are engaged in the business of manufacturing custom systems, our progress billing practices
are event-oriented rather than date-oriented, and vary from contract to contract. We ordinarily bill our
customers upon the occurrence of project milestones. Billings to customers affect the balance of billings in
excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts or the balance of costs and earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts, as well as the accounts receivable balance. Consequently, we focus on the
net amount of these accounts, along with accounts payable, to determine our management of working capital.
At June 30, 2007, the balance of these working capital accounts was $13,118 compared to $13,893 at June 30,
2006, reflecting a decrease of our investment in these working capital items of $775. Generally, a contract
will either allow for amounts to be billed upon shipment or on a progress basis based on the attainment of
certain milestones. During fiscal 2007, a greater percentage of our coniracts in progress called for billings
upon the attainment of certain milestones versus project shipment, which resulted in a decrease in our
investment in these working capital accounts.

Cash used in investing activities from continuing operations was $236 for fiscal 2007, compared to cash
used in investing activities of $258 and $897 for fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The use of cash during
fiscal 2007 related primarily to purchasing property and equipment and the increase of restricted cash, partiafly
offset by cash provided from the sale of our former headquarters facility. The use of cash during fiscal 2006
related primarily to purchases of plant equipment. The use of cash during fiscal 2005 related primarily to the
acquisition of certain composite louver technology and equipment for our marine product line, capital
refurbishments of our Denton and Abilene, Texas manufacturing facilities, and software and hardware
upgrades to our computer system.

Cash provided by financing of continuing operations activities was $1,292, $980, and $140 during fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and related to the proceeds and tax benefits from the issuance of common
stock pursuant to employee stock options.

There was no effect on cash from discontinued operations in 2007. Cash used by discontinued operations
during 2006 was $97, and cash provided by discontinued operations during fiscal 2005 was $25.

As a result of the above factors, our cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2007 increased by 510,604
net of $2.811 in restricted cash, compared to a decrease of $1,866 in fiscal 2006 and an increase of $4,158 in
fiscal 2005.

We have a $9,000 revolving line of credit for working capital requirements that expires September 30,
2008. This credit facility has a maximum availability equal to the lesser of (i) $9,000 or (ii) 70% of eligible
accounts and 40% of eligible inventory. The facility carries a floating interest rate based on the prime or
Eurodollar rate plus or minus an applicable margin, and is secured by substantially all of our assets. As of
June 30, 2007. the applicable rate was Eurodollar plus 2.00% (7.31%). This credit facility contains financial
covenants, restrictions on capital expenditures, acquisitions, asset dispositions, and additional debt, as well as
other customary covenants. At June 30, 2007, we had no outstanding borrowings under the credit line, and
$5,379 of outstanding stand-by letters of credit, leaving $3,621 of maximum availability under the facility
(actual availability at June 30, 2007 was $3,621 based on borrowing base calculations). As of June 30, 2007,
we were in compliance with all financial and other covenants of the loan agreement.
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In addition, our U.K. subsidiary had a £2,600 ($5,221) debenture agreement used to facilitate the
issuances of letters of credit and bank guarantees. At June 30, 2007, this facility was secured by substantially
all assets of our U.K. subsidiary and by a cash deposit of £1,400 ($2,811), which is recorded as restricted cash
on our consolidated balance sheet. At June 30, 2007, there was £1,927 ($3.870) outstanding under stand-by
letters of credit and bank guarantees under this debenture agreement. As of June 30, 2007, we were in
compliance with all financial and other covenants under this debenture agreement.

We believe we maintain adequate liquidity to support existing operations and planned growth.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2007.
Aggregate Contractual Obligations (dollars in thousands)

The following table summarizes the indicated contractual obligations and other commitments of the

Company as of June 30, 2007.
Payments Due by Period

l.ess Than 1to3d 3to5 After 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Operating lease obligations $ 5302 5 731 $ 1,271 $ 1,102 $ 2,198
Purchase obligations (i) 44293 44.293 - - -
Stand-by letters of credit (2) 9,249 6,602 2.507 140 -
Total contractual obligations $ 58.844 $ 51,626 $ 3.778 $ 1242 $ 2198

e ——— | e — | — e —
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1) Purchasc obligations in the table above represent the value of open purchase orders as of June 30,
2007. We believe that some of these obligations could be canceled for payment of a nominal penalty,
or no penalty. However, the amount of open purchase orders that could be canceled in this manner is
difficult to quantify. In addition, we generally have contracts with our customers that minimize our
exposure to losses for materials purchased within lead-times necessary to meet customer forecasts.

2) The stand-by letters of credit includes $5,379 issued under our $9,000 revolving credit facility and
$3,870 outstanding under the debenture agreement in the U.K.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Our estimates, judgments and assumptions are continually
evaluated based on available information and experience. Because of the use of estimates inherent in the
financial reporting process, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Certain of our accounting policies require a higher degree of judgment than others in their application.
These include revenue recognition on long-term contracts, accrual for estimated warranty costs, allowance for
doubtful accounts, and reserve for obsolete and slow moving inventory. Our policies and related procedures
for these items are summarized below.




Revenue Recognition. We provide products under long-term, generally fixed-priced, contracts that may
extend up to 18 months or longer in duration. In connection with these contracts, we follow the guidance
contained in AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP™) 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type
and Certain Production-Type Contracts” (“SOP 81-17). SOP 81-1 requires the use of percentage-of-
completion accounting for long-term contracts that contain enforceable rights regarding services to be
provided and received by the contracting parties, consideration to be exchanged, and the manner and terms of
settlement, assuming reasonably dependable estimates of revenues and expenses can be made. The
percentage-of-completion methodology generally results in the recognition of reasonably consistent profit
margins over the life of a contract. Amounts recognized in revenue are calculated using the percentage of
construction cost completed, generally on a cumulative cost to total cost basis. Cumulative revenues
recognized may be less or greater than cumulative costs and profits billed at any point during a contract’s term.
The resulting difference is recognized as “costs and earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts”
or “billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts.”

When using the percentage-of-completion method, we must be able to accurately estimate the total costs
we expect to incur on a project in order to record the amount of revenues for that period. We continually
update our estimates of costs and the status of each project with our subcontractors and our manufacturning
plant management. [f it is determined that a loss will result from the performance of a contract, the entire
amount of the loss is recognized when it is determined. The impact of revisions in contract estimates are
recognized on a cumulative basis in the period in which the revisions are made. In addition, significant
portions of our costs are subcontracted under fixed-priced arrangements, thereby reducing the risk of
significant cost overruns on any given project. However, a number of internal and external factors, including
labor rates, plant utilization factors, future material prices, changes in customer specifications, and other
factors can affect our cost estimates. While we attempt to reduce the uncertainty related to revenue and cost
estimates in percentage-of-completion models through corporate policy and approval and monitoring
processes, any estimation process, including that used in preparing contract accounting models, involves
substantial judgment.

Product Warranties. We offer warranty periods of various lengths to our customers depending upon the
specific product and terms of the customer agreement. We typically negotiate the terms regarding warranty
coverage and length of warranty depending upon the product involved and customary practices in the industry.
In general, our warranties require us to repair or replace defective products during the warranty period at no
cost to the customer. We attempt to obtain back-up concurrent warranties for major component parts from our
suppliers. As of each balance sheet date, we record an estimate for warranty related costs for products sold
based on historical experience, expectation of future conditions and the extent of back-up concurrent supplier
warranties in place. While we believe that our estimated warranty reserve is adequate and the judgment
applied is appropriate, due to a number of factors, our estimated liability for product warranties could differ
from actual warranty costs incurred in the future.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect estimated
losses resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments. On an on-going basis, we evaluate
the collectability of accounts receivable based upon historical collection trends, current economic factors, and
the assessment of the collectability of specific accounts. We evaluate the collectability of specific accounts
using a combination of factors, including the age of the outstanding balances, evaluation of customers’ current
and past financial condition and credit scores, recent payment history, current economic environment,
discussions with our project managers, and discussions with the customers directly, and record a provision for
doubtful accounts based on historical collections and estimated future collections. As actual collections or
market conditions may vary from those projected, adjustments to our allowance for doubtful accounts may be
required.
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Reserve for Obsolete and Slow-Moving Inventory. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market
and are reduced by a reserve for excess and potentially obsolete inventories. We regularly review inventory
values on hand, using specific aging categories, and record a provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory based on historical usage and estimated future usage. As actual future demand or market conditions
may vary from those projected, adjustments to our inventory reserve may be required.

New Accounting Standards

On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes: an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN No. 48").
FIN No. 48 clarifies Statement 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” to indicate the criteria that an individual
tax position would have to meet for some or all of the benefit of that position to be recognized in an entity’s
financial statements. FIN No. 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted
FIN No. 48 effective July 1, 2007. We are still assessing the impact, but do not believe a material adjustment
will be required.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. We have not completed our evaluation of the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 would allow
an irrevocable election to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses on the elected items recognized in earnings at each reporting period. The fair value option may only be
elected at the time of initial recognition of a financial asset or financial liability or upon the occurrence of
certain specified events. The election is applied on an instrument by instrument basis, with a few exceptions,
and is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS No. 159 also provides
expanded disclosure requirements regarding the effects of electing the fair value option on the financial
statements. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently
evaluating SFAS No. 159 and have not determined the financial assets and liabilities, if any, for which the fair
value option may be elected or the potential impact on the consolidated financial statements, if such election
were made.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements applicable to the Company are issued by the FASB
or other standards setting bodies, which we will adopt as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise
discussed, we believe the impact of recently issued standards that are not yet effective will not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.




ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Our primary market risk exposures are in the areas of interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange rate
risk. We believe our risk to interest rate fluctuations is nominal, as our investments are short-term in nature
and we are currently not borrowing under our bank credit facility. Our exposure to currency exchange rate
fluctuations has been, and is expected to continue to be, modest as foreign contracts payable in currencies
other than United Stated dollars are performed, for the most part, in the local currency and therefore provide a
“natural hedge™ against currency fluctuations. On occasion, we purchase derivatives with respect to foreign
contracts that do not contain a “natural hedge,” but the impact of any fluctuation in the exchange rates in these
hedged currencies, would be expected to have an immaterial impact on our financial results. The impact of
currency exchange rate movements on inter-company transactions has been, and is expected to continue to be,
immaterial. We did not have any derivatives outstanding as of, or during, the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.




ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Peerless Mfg. Co.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Peerless Mfg. Co. and subsidiaries (“the
Company”) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders'
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30,
2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Peerless Mfg. Co. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2007 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Peerless Mfg. Co.’s internal control over financtal reporting as of June 30,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our accompanying report dated September 11,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effective operation of Peerless Mfg. Co. and subsidiaries’
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas
September 11, 2007




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Peerless Mfg. Co.

We have audited Peerless Mfg. Co. and subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal control over financial reporting as
of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internat control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the nisk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Peerless Mfg. Co. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal controt
over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended June 30, 2007 and our report dated September 11, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas
September 11, 2007
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
{Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS

June 30,
20077 2006
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,015 $ 6411
Restricted cash 2,811 -
Accounts receivable-principally trade - net of
allowance for doubtful accounts of $465 at
June 30, 2007 and $462 at June 30, 2006 21,329 16,463
Inventories 3,919 4,871
Costs and earnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted contracts 15,976 13,891
Assets held for sale - 767
Deferred income taxes 1,410 1,338
Other current assets 1,646 1,431
Total current assets 64,106 45,172
Property, plant and equipment - net 3,747 2,140
Other assets 818 845
Deferred income taxes - 2
Total assets $ 68,671 $ 48,159

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Amounts in thousands, except share data)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Billings in excess of costs and earnings
on uncompleted contracts

Commissions payable

Income taxes payable

Product warranties

Accrued liabilities and other
Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxes
Other non current liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders' equity:
Common stock - authorized, 10,000,000
shares of $1 par value; issued and
outstanding, 6,439,644 and 6,267,618
shares at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

June 30,

2007 2006

$ 17,217 $ 13,860

6.970 2,601
1,401 1,238
1,576 75
641 626
5,679 3,842
33,484 22,242
1.010 -
640 -
6,440 6,268
1,359 9
431 245
25,307 19,395
33,537 25,917

$ 68.671 3 48.159

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Peerless Mfg, Co. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
{Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 20035
Revenues $ 75,141 $ 63411 $ 51,063
Cost of goods sold 51,343 45,978 37,356
Gross profit 23,798 17,433 13,707
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing 8,127 6,645 6,031
Engineering and project management 4,094 3,480 3,608
General and administrative 6,827 6,562 4,770
Gain on sale of property (3,501) - -
15,547 16,687 14,409
Operating income (loss) 8,251 746 (702)
Other income {(expense)
Interest income 433 248 158
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 171 101 (22)
Other income (expense) - net {15) 106 {(73)
589 455 63
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 3,840 1,201 (639)
Income tax benefit (expense) (2,928) {660) 113
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations 5912 541 (526)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations - (183) (80)
Income tax benefit - 68 14
Net loss from discontinued operations - (115) (66)
Net earnings (loss) $§ 5912 $ 426 $ (592)
BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 3 0.93 $ 0.09 3 (0.09
Loss from discontinued operations - {0.02) (0.0
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.93 $ 0.07 S (0.10)
DILUTED EARNINGS (1.OSS) PER SHARE
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations b 0.92 3 0.09 £ (0.09
Loss from discontinued operations - (0.02) (0.01)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.92 3 0.07 $  (©10)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Balance at July 1, 2004

Comprehensive loss
Net loss from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Foreign currency translation adjusiment
Total comprehensive loss

Stock options expense

Stock options exercised

Income tax benefit related to stock
options exercised

Balance at June 30, 2005

Comprehensive income
Net earnings from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Total comprehensive income

Restricted stock grants

Stock options expense

Stock options exercised

Income tax benefit related to stock
options exercised

Balance at June 30, 2006

Comprehensive income
Net earnings from continuing operations
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Total comprehensive income

Restricted stock grants

Stock options expense

Stock options exercised

Stock split in the form of a stock dividend

Income tax benefit related to stock
options exercised

Balance at June 30, 2007

Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

{Amounts in thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
No. of Common Paid-in  Comprehensive Retained  Shareholders’
Shares Stock Capital Income Earnings Equity
3014 § 3,014 $ 1,884 3 214 $ 19,561 $ 24,673
(526) (526)
(66} (66)
(43) (43)
(635)
69 69
22 22 118 140
43 43
3,036 3,036 2,114 171 18,969 24,290
541 541
(115) (115)
74 74
500
10 10 19 29
118 118
88 88 586 674
306 306
3,134 3,134 3,143 245 19,395 25917
5,912 5,912
186 186
6,098
11 11 61 72
158 158
77 77 921 998
3,218 3,218 (3,218) -
294 294
6,440 $ 6,440 § 1,359 ] 431 $ 25,307 $ 33537

——— R—— — e mtr— | e
—_— e L T e————  —_—_——m———————

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net earnings (loss)

Adjustments to recongcile net earnings (loss) to

N net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Deferred rent expense
Bad debt expense
Provision for warranty expenses
Inventory valuation reserve
Foreign exchange (gain) loss
Gain on sale of property

Stock based compensation
Restricted stock grants
Other

Accounts receivable
Inventories

Other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable

Commissions payable
Income taxes payable
Product warranties

Accrued liabilities and other

Cash flow from investing activities of continuing operations:
Increase in restricted cash
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations;
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Cash flow from discontinued operations - revised:
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash provided by investing activities

Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental information on cash flow:
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded
Leasehold improvements incentive allowance

Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements

Changes in operating assets and liabilities of continuing operations:

Costs and earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts

Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts

Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities of continuing operations:

Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements
Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing operations

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Amounts in thousands)

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
$ 5912 3 426 $  (592)
664 688 636
940 (354) 100
62 - -
3 427 318
186 365 341
217 271 161
(17hH) (10D 22
(3,501) (22) -
(294) (306) -
158 118 -
72 29 -
- - 69
{4,844) (5,227 1,661
738 (1,833) (359)
(2.051) (3,653) 2,288
(215 221 (348)
27 (61) 138
3,406 5,300 (1,236)
4,369 520 1,682
163 476 (82)
1,795 467 (557)
(171} (584) (678)
1,957 787 1,323
9,422 (2,488) 4,887
(2,811) - -
{1,662) (315) (897)
4,237 57 -
(236) (258) (897
998 674 140
294 306 -
1,292 980 140
- (106) 25
- 9 .
- 97 25
126 3 3
10,604 (1,866) 4,158
6,411 8,277 4,119
3 17.015 $ 64l $ 8277
5 481 $ 45 3 730
$ (297 $ (@37 3} a4
$ 578 $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts. )

NOTE A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Peerless Mfg. Co. designs, engineers, and manufactures specialized products for the removal of
contaminants from gases and liquids and for air pollution abatement. The Company's products are
manufactured principally at plants located in Texas and are sold worldwide. Our principal markets are in
North America and Europe. Primary customers are equipment manufacturers, engineering contractors
and operators of power plants.

A summary of the significant accounting policies in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements follows.

Consolidation

The Company consolidates the accounts of its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company had $4,530 and $1,210, respectively, in foreign bank balances
in Canada, Singapore and the United Kingdom. Of the June 30, 2007 balance, $2,811 was restricted.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable are due from companies in various industries. Credit is extended
based on an evaluaiion of the customer’s financial condition. Generally, collateral is not required except
on credit extended to international customers. Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days and
are stated at amounts due from customers net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts
outstanding longer than contractual payment terms are considered past due. The Company records an
allowance on a specific basis by considering a number of factors, including the length of time the
accounts receivable are past due, the Company’s previous loss history, the customer’s current ability to
pay its obligation to the Company, and the condition of the industry and the economy as a whole. The
Company writes off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible. Payments subsequently
received on such receivables are credited back to bad debt expense in the period the payment is received.

The Company had $1,085 and $1,033 of current retention receivables included in accounts receivable —
trade at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Additionally, $406 and $438 of long-term retention
receivables are included in other assets at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts.)

NOTE A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

Changes in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts in the last three fiscal years are as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 462 $ 352 $ 431
Bad debt expense 3 427 318
Accounts written off, net of recoveries - (317) (397)
Balance at end of year $ 465 $ 462 $ 352

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method, including material, labor and factory overhead. The Company regularly reviews the value of
inventory on hand, using specific aging categories, and records a provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory based on historical usage and estimated future usage. In assessing the ultimate realization of its
inventory, the Company is required to make judgments as to future demand requirements. As actual
future demand or market conditions may vary from those projected by the Company, adjustments to
inventory valuations may be required.

Depreciable Assets

Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations
over their estimated service lives (generally 3 to 7 years}, principally by the straight-line method. Routine
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Major improvements that extend the life, increase the
capacity or improve the safety or the efficiency of property owned are capitalized. Major improvements
to leased buildings are capitalized as leasehold improvements and amortized over the shorter of the
estimated life or the lease term.

Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement on Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews it long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable and exceeds its fair value. If conditions indicate an asset might be impaired, the Company
estimates the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition.
The impairment would be measured by the amount by which the asset exceeds its fair value, typically
represented by the discounted cash flows associated with the asset.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts.)

NOTE A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides products under long-term, generally fixed-priced, contracts that may extend up to
18 months, or longer, in duration. In connection with these contracts, the Company follows the guidance
contained in AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”) 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-
Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts” (“SOP 81-17). SOP 81-1 requires the use of percentage-
of-completion accounting for long-term contracts that contain enforceable rights regarding services to be
provided and received by the contracting parties, consideration to be exchanged, and the manner and
terms of settlement, assuming reasonably dependable estimates of revenues and expenses can be made.
The percentage-of-completion methodology generally results in the recognition of reasonably consistent
profit margins over the life of a contract. Amounts recognized in revenue are calculated using the
percentage of consiruction cost completed, generally on a cumulative cost to total cost basis. Cumulative
revenues recognized may be less or greater than cumulative costs and profits billed at any point in time
during a contract’s term. The resulting difference is recognized as “costs and earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts” or “billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncompleted contracts.”

The completed contract method is applied to relatively short-term contracts where the financial statement
presentation does not vary materially from the presentation under the percentage-of-completion method.
Revenues under the completed contract method are recognized upon shipment of the product.

Warranty Costs

The Company provides product warranties for specific product lines and accrues for estimated future
warranty costs in the period in which the revenue is recognized based on historical experience,
expectation of future conditions, and the extent of backup concurrent supplier warranties in place.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensation in accordance with SFAS 123R, “Share-Based
Payments.” Accordingly, the Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for
an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award and recognizes that cost
over the requisite service period.

Shipping and Handling Policy

Shipping and handling fees of finished goods charged to customers are reported as revenue. Shipping and
handling costs that are incurred that relate to products sold are reported as cost of goods sold. Shipping
and handling fees included in revenue were $466, $957, and $663 for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. Shipping and handling costs included in cost of goods sold were $447, $861, and $839 for
fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts.)

NOTE A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are charged to operating expenses under the sales and marketing category in the periods

incurred. Advertising expenditures were approximately $37, $28 and $25 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Design, Research and Development

Design, research and development costs are charged to operating expenses under the engineering and
project management category in the periods incurred. Design, research and development expenditures
were approximately $54, $24 and $31 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Revenues Presented Net of Taxes

The Company presents revenues net of sales taxes in its consolidated statements of operations.
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109 (“SFAS 1097), “Accounting
Jor Income Taxes.” Under SFAS 109, a deferred tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated
future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax basis.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during each year presented. Diluted earnings (loss) per
common share gives effect to the assumed exercise of stock options when dilutive.

Foreign Currency

All balance sheet accounts of foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at the fiscal year-end rate
of exchange and statement of operations items are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The resulting translation adjustments are made
directly to a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Gains and losses from foreign currency
transactions, such as those resulting from the settlement of foreign receivables or payables, are included
in the consolidated statements of operations.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these items.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounls.)

NOTE A. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Because of the use of estimates inherent in the financial reporting process, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Stock Split

On May 4, 2007, the Company announced a two-for-one stock split (in the form of a stock dividend) of
the Company’s outstanding common stock. Shareholders of record at the close of business on May 18,
2007 were entitled to receive the stock dividend, which was payable on June 7, 2007. All share and per
share amounts have been restated to give retroactive effect to the stock split. In addition, all references in
the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, to weighted
average number of shares, per share amounts, cash dividends, and market prices of the Company’s
common stock have been restated to give retroactive recognition to the stock split.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform to the current year
presentation. The reclassifications include the revision of the cash provided or used in Discontinued
Operations on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and the reclassification of immaterial start-up
reserve balances between product warranties and accrued liabilities and other on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

NOTE B. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Interpretation 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes: an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN No.
48"). FIN No. 48 clarifies Statement 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” to indicate the criteria that an
individual tax position would have to meet for some or all of the benefit of that position to be recognized
in an entity’s financial statements. FIN No. 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. FIN No. 48 is effective for the Company beginning July 1, 2007. The Company is still assessing
the impact, but does not believe a material adjustment will be required.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No, 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2006, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Company has not completed its evaluation of the impact of adopting SFAS
No. 157.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts.)

NOTE B. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS - CONTINUED

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No, 159”). SFAS No. 159 would allow the
Company an irrevocable election to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses on the elected items recognized in earnings at each reporting period. The fair
value option may only be elected at the time of initial recognition of a financial asset or financial liability or
upon the occurrence of certain specified events. The election is applied on an instrument by instrument basis,
with a few exceptions, and is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS No.
159 also provides expanded disclosure requirements regarding the effects of electing the fair value option on
the financial statements. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating SFAS No. 159 and has not yet determined the financial assets and liabilities,
it any, for which the fair value option may be elected or the potential impact on the consolidated financial
statements, if such election were made.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements applicable to the Company are issued by the FASB
or other standards setting bodies, which we will adopt as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise
discussed, we believe the impact of recently issued standards that are not effective will not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

NOTE C. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company monitors the creditworthiness of its customers. Significant portions of the Company’s
sales are to customers who place large orders for custom systems and customers whose activities are
related to the electrical generation and oil and gas industries. Some customers are located outside the
United States. The Company generally requires progress payments, but may extend credit to some
customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is also affected to some degree by conditions within
the electrical generation and oil and gas industries. When sales are made to smaller international
businesses, the Company generally requires progress payments or an appropriate guarantee of payment,
such as a letter of credit from a financial institution.

The Company is not dependent upon any single customer or group of customers in either of its two
primary business segments. The custom-designed and project-specific nature of its business can cause
year-to-year variance in its major customers. During fiscal 2007, one customer of environmental products
accounted for 14% of the Company’s consolidated revenues. In fiscal 2006, one customer of
environmental products accounted for 9% of the Company’s revenues. In fiscal 2005, a different
customer of environmental products accounted for 8% of the Company’s revenues.




Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounis.)

NOTE D. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
During the first quarter of fiscal 2004, the Board of Directors authorized the divestiture of its Boiler
segment. The Company sold certain assets of its Boiler segment with a net book value of $110, for $250,

resulting in a gain before tax on disposal of $140.

The following represents a summary of operating results and the gain on disposition of the Boiler
segment presented as discontinued operations:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Revenues $ - 5 - $ -
Cost of goods sold - - 75
Gross margin (loss) - - (75
Operating expenses - 183 3
Operating loss - (183) (80
Other income - - -
Income tax benefit - 68 14
Net loss from operations - (115) (66)
Gain on disposai, net of taxes - - -
Net loss S - 3 aly % 66)
Diluted loss per share
Net loss from operations $ - $ (0.02) 5 (0.0
Net gain on disposal 5 - 5 - 3 -
Net loss $ - $ (0.02) $ (0.01)

NOTE E. INVENTORIES
Principal components of inventories are as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006
Raw materials § 3,652 $ 4417
Work in progress 613 626
Finished goods 186 262
44534 5305
Reserve for obsolete and slow-moving inventory (532) (434)
$ 3919 $ 4871
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, excepl share and per share amounts. )

NOTE E. INVENTORIES - CONTINUED

Changes in the Company’s reserve for obsolete and slow-moving inventory are as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 434 $ 318 $ 196

Additions 217 271 161
Amounts written off (119) (155) (39)
Balance at end of year $ 532 $ 434 5 318

NOTE F. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The Company’s headquarters facility in Dallas, Texas was sold to the Dallas Area Rapid Transit
Authority on May 1, 2007. The Company was required to relocate its administrative offices,
manufacturing, and storage operations that were performed at that facility. The relocation of these
operations was completed in the quarter ended June 30, 2007. The Company’s research and development
laboratory located at that facility will be relocated during the quarter ending December 31, 2007, The net
book value of the facility was $736 at the time of sale and the total net gain recognized in operating

income was $3,501.

June 30, 2006

Buildings & improvements 3 2,768
Equipment 152
Furniture and fixtures 13
2,933

Less accumulated depreciation (2,794)
139
Land 628
$ 767
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Peerless Mfe. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts. )

NOTE G. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are summarized as follows:

June 30,

2007 2006
Buildings & improvements $ 2,134 $ 1329
Equipment 4,972 4,642
Furniture and fixtures 3,379 3,356
10,485 9,327
Less accumulated depreciation {6,884) (7,302)
3,601 2,025
Land 146 115
$ 3,747 $ 2,140

Depreciation expense for all property, plant and equipment for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005 totaled $664, $688, and $636, respectively.

NOTE H. COSTS AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS

The components of uncompleted contracts are as follows:

June 30,
2007 2006
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts and
estimated earnings % 70,527 $ 43,448
Less billings to date (61,521) (32,158)
5 9,006 $ 11,290

The components of uncompleted contracts are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

June 30,
2007 2006
Costs and earnings in excess of billings on
uncompleted contracts % 15,976 $ 13,891
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on
uncompleted contracts (6,970) (2,601}
3 9,006 $ 11,280
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share AMounts. )

NOTE 1. LINE OF CREDIT

The Company renewed and amended its credit facility in September 2006. This credit facility is a $9,000
revolving line of credit for working capital requirements that expires September 30, 2008. Under this
facility the Company has a maximum borrowing availability equal to the lesser of (i) $9,000 or (i1} 70%
of eligible accounts and 40% of eligible inventory. This revolving line of credit carries a floating interest
rate based on the prime or Eurodollar rate plus or minus an applicable margin, and is secured by
substantialty all of the Company’s assets. As of June 30, 2007, the applicable rate was Eurodollar plus
2.00% (7.31%). This credit facility contains financial covenants. restrictions on capital expenditures,
acquisitions, asset dispositions, and additional debt, as well as other customary covenants.

At June 30, 2007, the Company had no outstanding borrowings under the credit line. and $5,379 of
outstanding stand-by letters of credit. leaving $3,621 of maximum availability under the facility and
actual availability based on borrowing base calculations. As of June 30. 2007, the Company was in
compliance with all financial and other covenants under this facility.

In addition, the Company’s U.K. subsidiary had a £2,600 (85,221} debenture agreement used to facilitate
the issuances of letters of credit and bank guarantees. At June 30, 2007, this facility was secured by
substantially all of our U.K. subsidiary’s assets, and by a cash deposit of £1,400 ($2.811), which is
recorded as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheet. At June 30, 2007, there was £1,927 ($3,870)
outstanding under stand-by letters of credit and bank guarantees under this debenture agreement. As of
June 30, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all financial and other covenants under this

debenture agreement.

NOTE J. PRODUCT WARRANTIES

The Company warrants that its products will be free from defects in materials and workmanship and will
conform to agreed-upon specifications at the time of delivery and typically for a period of 12 to 18
months from the date of customer acceptance, depending upon the specific product and terms of the
customer agreement. Typical warranties require the Company to repair or replace defective products
during the warranty period at no cost to the customer. The Company attempts to obtain back-up
concurrent warranties for major component parts from its suppliers. The Company provides for the
estimated cost of product warranties, based on historical experience by product type, expectation of future
conditions and the extent of back-up concurrent supplier warranties in place, at the time the product
revenue is recognized. Revision to the estimated product warranties is made when necessary, based on
changes in these factors. Product warranty activity is as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of period $ 626 $ 645 $ 982
Provision for warranty expenses 186 365 341
Warranty charges (171) (384) (678)

Balance at end of period $ 641 $ 626 $ 645




Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts.)

NOTE K. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company leases office space, office equipment and other personal property under leases expiring at
various dates. Management expects that, in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be

renewed or replaced by other leases. Total rent expense incurred under operating leases was $325, $163,
and $208, for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

At June 30, 2007, future minimum rental commitments under all operating leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount

2008 3 731

2009 656

2010 615

2011 551

2012 551

Thereafter 2,198
3 5300

On June 19, 2007, Martin-Manatee Power Partners, LLC (“MMPP”) filed a complaint against the
Company in the Circuit Court of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida. In the
complaint, MMPP asserts claims for breach of contract and express warranty, breach of implied warranty
and indemnification against the Company, arising out of an incident in September 2005 when an electric
fuel gas start-up heater, which was a component of a fuel gas heater skid supplied by the Company to
MMPP. allegedly ruptured resulting in a fire. In the complaint, MMPP does not make a specific demand
for damages, but alleges that it has incurred approximately $5.7 million in costs to repair the damage as a
result of the incident. We believe MMPP’s claims are without merit and, with our insurance company,
intend to vigorously defend this suit.

From time to time the Company is involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of
its business. The Company accounts for its litigation contingencies pursuant to the provisions of SFAS
No. 5 and FIN 14, which requires that losses that are both probable and reasonably estimable be accrued.

NOTE L. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), effective July 1, 2005.
SFAS 123R requires the recognition of the fair value of stock-based compensation in net earnings.

The Company has two stock option and restricted stock plans. In December 1995, the Company adopted
a stock option and restricted stock plan (the **1995 Plan™), which provided for a maximum of 480,000
shares of common stock to be issued. In January 2002, the Company adopted a stock option and
restricted stock plan (the “2001 Plan”), which provided for a maximum of 500,000 shares of common
stock to be issued. Under both plans, stock options generally vest ratably over four years, and expire ten
years from date of grant. Under both plans, stock options are granted to employees at exercise prices
equal to the fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant. Stock options granted to non-
employee directors are generally exercisable on the date of grant, which is the date of the annual
shareholders’ meeting.
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Peerless Mfg. Co. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts.)

NOTE L. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - CONTINUED

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service period of the
individual grants, which generally equals the vesting period. Under both plans, restricted stock awards
entitle the holder to shares of common stock when the award vests. Awards generally vest ratably over
four years. The fair value of the restricted stock awards is based upon the market price of the underlying
common stock as of the date of the grant and is amortized over their applicable vesting period using the
straight-line method. The Company uses newly issued shares of common stock to satisfy option exercises
and restricted stock awards.

Prior to July 1, 2005, the Company accounted for these plans under the intrinsic value method described
in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
interpretations. The Company, applying the intrinsic value method, did not record stock-based
compensation cost in net earnings because the exercise price of its stock options equaled the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of grant. The Company has elected to utilize the modified prospective
transition method for adopting SFAS 123R. Under this method, the provisions of SFAS 123R apply to all
awards granted or modified after the date of adoption. In addition, the unrecognized expense of awards
not yet vested at the date of adoption, determined under the original provisions of SFAS 123, will be
recognized in net earnings in the periods after the date of adoption. The Company recognized stock-based
compensation costs in the amounts of $158 and $118 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and related tax-benefits of $56 and $43 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The estimated forfeiture rate used to calculate the expense was 1.7% and 2.6% for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

SFAS 123R requires the Company to present pro forma information for periods prior to the adoption as if
it had accounted for all stock-based compensation under the fair value method of SFAS 123. For
purposes of pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of the options at the date of grant is amortized
to expense over the requisite service period, which generally equals the vesting period. The following
table illustrates the effect on net earnings and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R to its stock-based employee compensation.

Year ended

Net earnings (loss), as reported $ (592)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expense determined using the fair value based method

for all awards, net of tax (161
Pro forma net earnings (loss) 5 (153)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic - as reported 3 {0.10)

Basic - pro forma 3 {0.13)

Diluted - as reported b (0.10)

Diluted - pro forma $ (0.13)
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NOTE L. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - CONTINUED

During fiscal 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the extension of the exercise period for
certain options to a former employee, who retired from the Company on July 2, 2004. In connection,
therewith, the Company recorded compensation expense in fiscal 2005 of $69.

On June 15, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors
approved the acceleration of the vesting of unvested stock options held by employees, including executive
officers, that had both 1) an exercise price equal to or greater than $8.47 per share, and 2) would vest in
less than 12 months. This action resulted in 13,100 options becoming immediately exercisable as of

June 15, 2005. The total impact of these options on the above pro-forma loss was an additional expense
of $19, or ($0.005) per share. All other terms and conditions of these options were unchanged. Of the
options accelerated, 8,000 were held by executive officers.

For the Company’s stock-based compensation plans, the fair value of each grant was estimated at the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Black-Scholes utilizes assumptions related to
volatility, the risk-free interest rate, the dividend yield (which is assumed to be zero, as the Company has
not paid, nor anticipates paying any. cash dividends) and employee exercise behavior. Expected
volatilities utilized in the model are based mainly on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price
and other factors,

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 23R, the financial results were lower than under the previous
accounting method for share based compensation by the following amounts:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes  $158 5118
Net earnings from continuing operations 102 75
Net earnings 102 75

Basic and diluted earnings per common share  $0.02 $0.01

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock options were
presented as operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS 123R requires
that cash flows from the exercise of stock options resulting from tax benefits in excess of recognized
cumulative compensation cost (excess tax benefits) be classified as financing cash flows. For the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, $294 and $306, respectively, of such excess lax benefits were
classified as financing cash flows.
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NOTE L. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - CONTINUED

A summary of the option activity under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (the number of options and weighted average exercise
price has been adjusted for our two-for-one stock split in June 2007):

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

No. of Options Price No. of Options Price

Balance at July 1 287,300 § 701 475,900 $ 561
Granted 10,000 11.90 44,000 9.07
Exercised (149,426) 6.67 (174,750} 3.86
Forfeited before vesting - - (56,850} 6.53
Forfeited after vesting - - {1,000) 9.75
Balance at June 30 147,874 7.68 287,300 7.01
Exercisable at June 30 88,574 7.49 196,728 6.60

The total options outstanding at June 30, 2007 had a weighted average remaining term of 6.76 years and
an aggregate intrinsic value of $1,923 based upon the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
June 29, 2007. The options exercisable at June 30, 2007 had a weighted average remaining term of 6.08
years and an aggregate intrinsic value of $1,168, based upon the closing price of the Company’s common
stock on June 29, 2007.

The following is a summary of the assumptions used and the weighted average grant-date fair value of the
stock options granted during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Expected volatility 44.5% 477 % - 52.6% 36.8% - 46.4%
Expected term (years) 49?2 4.05 - 5.66 5.00
Risk free interest rate 5.11% 4.12% - 4.63% 4.00%
Dividend vield - - -
Weighted average grant
date fair value $5.45 $4.04 $2.88
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NOTE L. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - CONTINUED

A summary of the stock options exercised during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is
presented below:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Total cash received  $ 998 $ 674 $ 140

Income tax benefits 294 306 43

Total intrinsic value of options exercised 943 899 195

A summary of the status of the Company’s unvested stock options and changes during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is presented below:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date
No. of Options Fair Value No. of Options Fair Value
Unvested at beginning of period 90,572 $ 338 140,200 $ 299
New Grants - - 36,000 3.94
Vested (31,272) 3.30 (28,778) 3.00

Forfeited - - {56,850} 2.97
Unvested at end of period 59,300 3.41 90,572 3.38

The total fair value of stock options vested during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
was $103, $86, and $214, respectively.

As of June 30, 2007, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock
options was $151. The weighted average remaining requisite service peried of the unvested stock options

was 1.15 years.

A summary of the restricted stock award activity under the plans for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007
and 2006 is as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date
No. of Shares Fair Value No. of Shares Fair Value

Balance at July 1 20,000 $ 8353 - $ -
New Grants 22,600 14.58 20,000 8.53

Vested (5.000) 8.53 - -

Forfeited - - - -
Balance at June 30 37,600 12.17 20,000 8.53
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NOTE L. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION - CONTINUED

As of June 30, 2007, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock
awards was $399. The weighted average remaining requisite service period of the unvested stock awards
was 1.82 years.

NOTE M. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

On May 8, 2007, the Company announced the adoption of a new stockholder rights plan. The new rights
plan replaced the Company’s previous rights plan, which was adopted in 1997 and expired on May 22,
2007. Shareholders of record at the close of business on May 22, 2007 received a dividend distribution of
one right for each share of common stock outstanding on that date. The rights generally will become
exercisable and allow the holder to acquire the Company’s common stock at a discounted price if a
person or group (other than certain institutional investors specified in the rights plan) acquires beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Rights held by those that
exceed the 20% threshold will be void.

The rights plan also includes an exchange option. In general, after the rights become exercisable, the
Board of Directors may, at its discretion, effect an exchange of part or all of the rights (other than rights
that have become void) for shares of the Company’s common stock. Under this option, the Company
would issue one share of common stock for each right, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, redeem all outstanding rights for $0.001 per right at any
time prior to the time the rights become exercisable. The rights will expire on May 22, 2017, unless
earlier redeemed, exchanged or amended by the Board of Directors.

NOTE N. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors a defined contribution pension plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code for all employees who have completed at least 90 days of service. Company contributions are
voluntary and at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company’s contribution expense for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $238, $214, and $202, respectively.
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NOTE O. INCOME TAXES

Deferred taxes are provided for the temporary differences between the financial reporting bases and the
tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The temporary differences that give rise to the deferred
tax assets or liabilities are as follows:

June 30,
2007 2006
Deferred tax assets
Inventories s 184 203
Accrued liabilities 1.072 937
Accounts receivable 154 170
Net operating loss carry-forwards 227 195
Stock based compensation 83 46
Other 25 18
1,745 1,569
Less valuation allowance - (149)
1,745 1,420
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (130) (76}
Gain on sale of property {1,214) -
Other (1) (4)
(1,345 (BO)
Net deferred tax asset $ 400 1.340

Deferred tax assets and liabilities included in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows:

June 30,
2007 2006
Current deferred tax asset $ 1,410 $ 1,338
Non-current deferred 1ax asset., net - 2
Non-current deferred tax liability, net (1,010) -
$ 400 $ 1,340
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NOTE O. INCOME TAXES - CONTINUED

At the end of fiscal 2004, the Company had a state net operating loss carry-forward of $8,200,
representing a deferred tax asset of $212. During fiscal 2005, the Company determined that it was more
likely than not that insufficient taxable income would be generated in future years to enable the Company
to fully utilize the remaining net operating loss carry-forward prior to its expiration. Accordingly, the
Company recorded a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax asset to its anticipated realizable
value, through a charge to deferred tax expense of $149 in fiscal 2005. During the Company’s fiscal year
2007, the State of Texas’ newly enacted margin tax became effective. The legislation associated with the
new margin tax aliowed the Company to be able to recover the remaining state net operating loss carry-
forward. As a result, the Company reversed the previously recorded valuation allowance.

The (expense) benefil for income taxes consists of the following:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Current tax (expense) benefit
Federal $(1,895) $(746) $332
State 93) (180) 33)
Foreign - 06 {(72)
(1,988) (860) 227
Deferred tax (expense) benefit (940) 268 (100}

$(2,928) $(592) $127

Income tax (expense) benefit - continuing operations $(2,928) $(660)
Income tax benefit - discontinued operations 68

Income tax (expense) benefit $(2,928) $(592)

The income tax (expense) benefit varies from the federal statutory rate due to the following:

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Income tax (expense) benefit at federal statutory rate $ (2,991 $ (346) $ 244
Decrease (increase) in income lax expense
resulting from
State 1ax, net of federal benefit (108) (218) (38)
Foreign sales income exclusions 6 13 67
Effect of lower tax rate on foreign income 9 6 15
Change in valuation allowance 149 - (149)
Other 7 47 (12)
Income tax (expense) benefit $ (2,928) $ (592) $ 127
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NOTE P. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share have been computed by dividing net earnings (loss) by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share
reflects the potential dilution that could occur if options were exercised into common stock. The
following table sets forth the computation for basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the periods
indicated (the number of shares and earnings (loss) per share have been adjusted for our two-for-one
stock split in June 2007):

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 5912 5 541 $  (526)
Loss from discontinued operations - (113) (66)
Net earnings (loss) $ 5912 5 426 $  (592)
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 6,342 6,133 6,057
Effect of dilutive options and restricted stock 85 136 -
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 6,427 6,269 6,057
Net earnings (loss) per share - basic:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 093 $ 009 5 (009
Loss from discontinued operations - (0.02) (0.01)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 093 $ 0407 5 (0.10)
Net earnings (loss) per share - diluted:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 5 092 $ 0.09 § (0.09)
Loss from discontinued operations - (0.02) (0.01)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 092 $ 007 $ (0.10)

For fiscal 2006 and 2005, there were 28 and 238 stock options, respectively, excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect was antidilutive. No stock options were
antidilutive for fiscal 2007.
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NOTE Q. INDUSTRY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments: Environmenta! Systems and Separation Filtration Systems.
The main product of its Environmental Systems segment is its Selective Catalytic Reduction Systems,
referred to as “SCR Systems.” These environmental control systems are used for air pollution abatement
and converting nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions from exhaust gases caused by burning hydrocarbon fuels
such as coal, gasoline, natural gas and oil. Along with the SCR Systems, this segment also offers systems
to reduce other pollutants such as carbon monoxide (CO) and particulate matter. The Company combines
these systems with other components, such as instruments, controls and related valves and piping to offer
its customers a totally integrated system. The Separation Systems segment produces various types of
separators and filters used for removing liquids and solids from gases and air.

Segment profit and loss is based on revenue less direct expenses of the segment before allocation of
general, administrative, research and development costs. All inter-company transfers between segments
have been eliminated. The Company allocates all costs associated with the manufacture, sale and design
of its products to the appropriate segment. Segment information and reconciliation to operating profit for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005 are presented below. The Company does not
allocate general and administrative expenses (“reconciling items™), assets, expenditures for assets or
depreciation expense on a segment basis for internal management reporting, and therefore this
information is not presented,

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005

Revenues
Environmental 27.885 19,767 20,591
Separation Filtration 47,256 43 644 30,472
Consolidated 75,141 63,411 51,063

Operating income (loss)
Environmental
Separation Filtration
Reconciling items

Consolidated
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NOTE Q. INDUSTRY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION - CONTINUED

The Company attributes revenues from external customers to individual geographic areas based on the
location of the Company’s subsidiary where the sale is recorded. Information about the Company’s
operations in different geographic areas as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
1s as follows:

United United

States Kingdom Eliminations Consolidated
2007
Net sales to unaffiliated customers % 66679 % 8,462 % - $ 75,141
Transfers between geographic areas 435 - (433) -
Total $ 67.114 5 8,462 $ (435) $ 75,141
Identifiable long-lived assets $  3.542 3 205 $ - $ 3,747
2006
Net sales to unaffiliated customers $ 53,281 $ 10,130 $ - $ 63,411
Transfers between geographic arcas 303 - (503) -
Total $ 53,784 $ 10,130 b (503) $ 63,411
Identifiable long-lived asscts $ 2,088 3 52 b - ¥ 2,140
2005
Net sales to unaffiliated customers $ 40,261 $ 10,802 3 - $ 51,063
Transfers between geographic areas 2,230 - (2,230) -
Total $ 42491 $ 10,802 3 (2.230) $ 51,063
Identifiable long-lived assets § 3247 $ 68 3 - 3 3313

Transfers between the geographic areas primarily represent inter-company export sales and are accounted
for based on established sales prices between the related companies.

Identifiable long-lived assets of geographic areas are those assets related to the Company’s operations in
each area.

Revenues from external customers based on the location of the customer are as follows for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Fiscal Year United States International Consolidated
2007 $ 47.080 $ 28.061 $ 75,141
2006 $ 32,513 h) 30,898 3 63,411
2005 $ 30.248 $ 20,815 $ 51,063

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, there were no sales to a single customer located
outside the United States that accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s consolidated revenues.
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NOTE R. QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

The following tables represent the unaudited quarterly consolidated financial data of the Company for

fiscal 2007 and 2006.

Revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses™®

Operating income

Net earnings from continuing operations

Net earnings from discontinued operations
Net earnings

Basic earnings per share **

Net earnings from continuing operations
Net earnings from discontinued operations
Net earnings

Diluted earnings per share **

Net earnings from continuing operations
Net earnings from discontinued operations
Net earnings

* Includes gain on sale of property of 33,501,

Year ended June 30, 2007

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter  Total
$ 14638 § 14.091 § 20,191 % 26,221 $75,141
4,395 4,504 6,594 8,305 23,798
3,743 3,974 5,173 2,657 15547
652 530 1,421 5,648 8.251
451 457 982 4,022 5,912
451 457 982 4,022 5912
$0.07 $0.07 $0.15 30.63 $0.93
$0.07 $0.07 $0.15 $0.63 $0.93
$0.07 $0.07 $0.15 30.62 30.92
$0.07 $0.07 $0.15 $0.62 $0.92

** Certain earnings per share amounts may not total due to rounding.
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NOTE R. QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

Revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations

Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share *

Net earnings (loss} from continuing operations
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share *

Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Net earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)

Year ended June 30, 2006

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter _Fourth Quarter  Total
$ 11,642 % 11,534 % 18,121 § 22114 $63.411
2,353 3,146 5,343 6,591 17433
3,500 4,472 3.890 4819 16,687
(1.153) (1,326) 1,453 1,772 746
(689) (792) 1,003 1,019 541
. (33) (8R) 6 (115)
{689) (825) 915 1,025 426
(30.11) ($0.13) $0.16 $0.17 $0.09
$0.00 ($0.01) (30.01) $0.00 (30.02)
($0.11) (30.14) 30.15 $0.17 $0.07
($0.11) ($0.13) $0.16 30.16 $0.09
$0.00 ($0.01) (30.01) $0.00  ($0.02)
(30.11) (50.14) $0.15 $0.16 $0.07

* Cerfain earnings per share amounts may not total due to rounding.
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NOTE S. OTHER INFORMATION
The components of accrued liabilities and other are as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2007 2006
Accrued start-up expense $ 2095 $§ 1,717
Accrued compensation 1,755 1,194
Accrued professional, legal and other expénses 1,555 531
Sales and use tax payable 24 3
Other 250 397

$ 56/9 S 3.842

The Company’s earnings (loss) before income taxes are as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Centinuing operations
United States b 9,032 5 1,404 $ (886}
United Kingdom {192} {203) 247
8,840 1,201 (639)
Discontinued operations (183) (80)

3 8,840 $ 1,018 5 {719)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that
evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report 1o provide reasonable
assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that are filed or submitted under the
Exchange Act is recorded. processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
rules and forms specified by the SEC. We note that the design of any system of controls is based in part
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving the stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securitics and Exchange Act of 1934. Our
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our chief executive
officer and our chief financial officer, and effected by our board of directors, management and other
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria described in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on management’s assessment under the framework in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework, we concluded that internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
June 30, 2007.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Grant Thornton LLP. has audited the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as stated in their report which is included
herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth

quarter of the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely 1o
materially affcct, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Limitations on Controls

Because of its inherent limitations, management does not expect that our disclosure control and
our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with policies and
procedures may deteriorate. Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based
upon certain assumptions and can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its objectives will
be met. Further, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to errors
or fraud will not occur or that all contro! issues and instances of fraud, if any within the Company, have
been detected.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS , EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by ltem 10 with respect to our executive officers is included in Part I of
this Report. The information required by ltem 10 with respect to our directors is incorporated by
reference to the information included under the caption “Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement for
the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to compliance with Section 16 of the Exchange
Act is incorporated by reference to the information included under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to our audit committee and our audit committee
financial expert is incorporated by reference to the information included under the caption “Board
Meetings, Committees and Compensation — Board Committees ” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to our Code of Conduct for Directors and
Employees is posted on our website at www.peerlessmfg.com in the Investor Relations section under
“Corporate Governance.” The code applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer and others performing similar functions. If we make any substantive
amendments to the code, or grant any waivers to the code for any of our executive officers or directors,
we will disclose the amendment or waiver on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the information included under
the captions “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive Compensation” and ““Board Meetings,
Committees and Compensation — Director Compensation™ in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the information included under
the caption “Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners” and “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to the information included under
the caption “Executive Compensation — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ in our Proxy
Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by Item 14 with respect to the fees and services of Grant Thornton LLP,
our independent registered public accounting firm, is incorporated by reference to the information
included under the caption “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in our Proxy Statement for
the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

The following audited consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this Report under Item § —
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended
June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and
Exchange Commission have been omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they
would be required or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements
or notes thereto.

Exhibits:
See the Exhibit Index, which is included in this Report beginning on page 65.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

Date: September 11, 2007

PEERLESS MFG. CO.

By: /s/ Peter ). Burlage

Peter J. Burlage

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on

September 11, 2007.

/s/ Sherrill Stone
Sherrill Stone

/s/ Peter J. Burlage
Peter J. Burlage

/s/ Henry G. Schopfer, III

Henry G. Schopfer, 111

/s/ Kenneth R. Hanks
Kenneth R. Hanks

{3/ Robert McCashin
Robert McCashin

s/ R. Clayton Mulford
R. Clayton Mulford

/s/ Howard G. Westerman, Jr.

Howard G. Westerman, JIr.

Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit No.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Description

3(a)

3(b)
3(c)

4(a)

10(a)*

10(b)*

10(c)*

10(d)*

10(e)

10(f)

10(g)

10(h)

10(1)*

10G)*

10(k)*

10(D)*

10(m)*

Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date (filed as Exhibit 3(a) to our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 1997, Commission File
No. 000-05214, and incorporated herein by reference).

Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the quarter
ended December 31, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment to the Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on May 23, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Rights Agreement dated May 4, 2007 between Peerless Mfg. Co. and Mellon Investor
Services, LLC, as Rights Agent (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Registration Statement on
Form 8-A, dated May 8, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference).

Incentive Compensation Plan effective January 1, 1981, as amended January 23, 1991
(filed as Exhibit 10(b) to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1991, Commission File No. 000-05214, and incorporated herein by reference).
Peerless Mfg. Co. 1995 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(h)
to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997,
Commission File No. 000-05214, and incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment to Peerless Mfg. Co. 1995 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan dated
November 11, 1999 (filed as Exhibit 10(h) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1999, Commission File No. 000-05214, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Peerless Mfg. Co. 2001 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (filed as Appendix B to
our Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A dated October 24, 2001, and incorporated herein
by reference).

Credit Agreement dated as of October 30, 2003, by and between Peerless Mfg. Co. and
Comerica Bank (filed as Exhibit 10(a) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2006, by and between
Peerless Mfg. Co. and Comerica Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on September 22, 2006, and incorporated herein
by reference).

Master Revolving Note dated as of October 30, 2003, by Peerless Mfg. Co. in favor of
Comerica Bank (filed as Exhibit 10(c) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference).

Master Revolving Note dated September 30, 2006, by Peerless Mfg. Co. in favor of
Comerica Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on September 22, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated March 21, 2007 between
Peerless Mfg. Co. and Peter J. Burlage (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 26, 2007, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Employment Agreement dated January 11, 2006, by and between Peerless Mfg. Co. and
Sean P. McMenamin (filed as Exhibit 10(a) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference).
Employment Agreement dated October 10, 2006, by and between Peerless Mfg. Co. and
David Taylor (filed as Exhibit 10 (a) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q} for the
fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference).

Consulting Agreement dated June 29, 2006, by and between Peerless Mfg. Co. and
Sherrill Stone (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on July 7, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Key Employee Bonus Plan effective as of January 4, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 9, 2005, and
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Exhibit No.

Exhibit Description

10(n)y*

10(0)*

10(p)*

10(q)*

10(r)

10(s)*
21
23

24.1

31(a)

31(b)

32(a)

32(b)

incorporated herein by reference).

Description of Compensation Payable to Non-Employee Directors (filed as Exhibit
10(b) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,
2003, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 9, 2005, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Executive Stock Option Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 9. 2005, and incorporated herein
by reference).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on November 4, 2003, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Agreement for Purchase between Peerless Mfg. Co. and Dallas Rapid Area Transit
(Filed as Exhibit 10(a) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended December 31, 2006, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement

Subsidiaries of Peerless Mfg. Co.

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

Powers of Attorney for our directors and certain executive officers.

Rule 13a — 14(a)/15d — 14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

Rule 13a - 14(a)/15d — 14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

* Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF PEERLESS MFG.CO.

Name Domicile Ownership
Peerless Europe Ltd. The United Kingdom 100%
PMC Acquisition, Inc. Texas 100%




EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have issued our reports dated September 11, 2007, accompanying the consolidated financial
statements and management’s asscssment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Peerless Mfg, Co. and subsidiaries on Form 10-K for the
vear ended June 30, 2007. We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of said reports in
the Registration Statements of Peerless Mfg. Co. and subsidiaries on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-17229,
effective November 12, 1999, and File No. 333-76754, effective January 15, 2002).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Dallas, Texas

September 11, 2007




EXHIBIT 31(a)

RULE 13A - 14(A)/15D - 14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Peter I. Burlage, certify that:

l.
2.

T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Peerless Mfg. Co.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{e)) and
internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter, the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 11, 2007 fs/ Peter J. Burlage
Peter J. Burlage
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31(b)

RULE 13A - 14(A)/15D - 14(A) CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I. Henry G. Schopter. III, certify that:

"

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Peerless Mtg. Co.:

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included n this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and
internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f} and 15d-15(f)
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared:

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the eftectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter, the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting: and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 11, 2007 /s/ Henry G. Schopfer, I

Henry G. Schopfer, 111
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32(a)

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Peter J. Burlage, certify that pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States
Code:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2007, as filed with
the Securities Exchange Commission on the date hercof (the “Report™), fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended: and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in
the Report.

Date: September 11, 2007 /s/ Peter J. Burlage
Peter J. Burlage
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing Certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. It is not being
filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act, and is not to be incorporated by reference
into anv filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.




EXHIBIT 32(b)

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Henry G. Schopfer, Iii, certify that pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United
States Code:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2007, as filed with
the Securitics Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in
the Report.

Date: September 11, 2007 /s/ Henry G. Schopfer. 11
Henry G. Schopfer, 111
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing Certification is being furnished solely pursuani io {8 U.S.C. Section 1350. It is not being
filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act, and is not to be incorporated by reference
into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.
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Corporate Headquarters

Peerless Mig. Co.

14651 North Dallas Parkway
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Dallas, Texas 75254
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Internet: www.peerlessmig.com

Stock Exchange Listing

Ticker Symbol: PMFG
Peerless Mfg. Co. common stock is
listed on the NASDAQ exchange.
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The 2007 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders will be held on
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Dallas, Texas 75254.

Stock Transfer Agent
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A copy of our Annual Report on Form
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filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission may be obtained without
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